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58I Cards and Payment Services Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
{Figure .» Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at Az at
Particulars No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2029
ASSETS
1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalants 5 75818 643 20
(b Bank balance clner than cash and cash equivalenis [} g 22 %90
{¢) Danvatva financial instrumens 7 . 0.1
{d} Trads racewables ‘ 8 168.47 81.52
{e) Loans g 187,25 23459.14
N nvestments 10 1.297.19 957 56
(@) Ciner fnancinl assels 1 21332 194 87
Total financial assets 32,972.62 2541329
2 Non-financial assets
{a) Current 13z assats (nel) t2 41,24 5247
1b) Deferred 1ax assels (nel) 13 218.53 195.09
(<} Property planl and equipment 14 320 56.46
(d} Capntal work in progress 4 0.49 049
18} Intangible assats under development 14 13,75 958
ify Inlangible assats 14 : 116 41 89 66
ig) Righl-ol-use assas 14 283.85 16198
{h}) Cthar non-financial assels 15 962.34 83384
Total nen-financial aasets 167581 1.599.57
Total assats { 1+3) 14 648.41 27,012.08
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Llabilities
1 Financisl liabilitics
{a) Payables 18
{1} Trade payablas
(i) 1012 outstanding dues of micro enterpnses and tmall anterpnsas 38.26 -
(i) 10tal ouistanding dues of creditors other than micra enterpnses and small enterprisas 1.050.54 L]
{1 Qubar payables
{i} tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises . -
{ii) total gutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterpnses 1087 1134
(b} Debt secunties 17 7106 34 5932.93
tc) Borrowings {other than Debt Secunties) 18 14 880.10 10 6€3.52
{d) Subordinated habiities 12 1,196.02 1,298.22
{e} Othar financial kabilties ) 20 1.572469 a76.10
Total financial lisbilities 25,882.02 19,863.60
2 Non- financial liabilities
{a) Prowisions 21 477.29 409 65
{b) Other non-financial Kabibitres 22 735.52 837.58
Total non-financial liabilities 1,212.91 1,047.23
Total llabilitles [ 142} 2_0_,395.73 20,710.83
3 Equity
{a} Equily share capital 23 543.18 940.53
(by Qher equity 24 6,809 52 §361.50
Total equity 7.732.70 8,302.03
Total Habilities and aquity {1+2+3) 74.648.43 2701206
1 to 61

Ses accompanying notes to the financial statements

As par our report of svan date attached
For 5. Ramanand Aiyar & Ca.
Charterad Accountants

Firm Registration No. :000890N

e e

R. Balasubramanlan
Partner
Mambership No, : 080432

Placs: Gurugram
Date : Aprl 29, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Dirsctors

Rama Moha o Amars
Managing Director & CEO
DHN; 08851384

%\&Xos\r_g;

Shriniwas Yeshwant Joshi

Director
DIN. 45189887



SBt Cards and Payment Services Limitsd
Statamant of Profit and Lows for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Figure in Rupees Crores_unless otherwise statad}

Far the yaar snded

Far the ysar ended

Baticultes WAULLE March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

1 Ravenue from opsrations
{l} Interest Income 2% 4,866 03 4 94685
i) Fees and commission income 2% 522656 390767
-m)  Met gan on far vakes changes 7 - 053
(v)  Sale of services 13219 134,18

v.  Business development incentive .ncome 447 61 296 18
(W) Insurance commission income 488 825

Total revenue from uperations 10!677.21 0!295.46

2 Otherincoms 28 624 26 41712

3 Totalincome (1+2) 11901.52 9|71I.58

4  Ezpenses
{i' Finance cosis 9 102132 1.043 40
{i} Fees and commussicn expanse 102263 60613

i) Mot loss on Rir vehyg changes Fig 210 -

)  Net loss on derecognition of financial instruments under amortisad cost catogory L1 t71 8145
{v} Impai 1t on financial o 225584 2.638.55
{vi} Empime bencfils aipenses n 472.71 431 58
(vii) Dep amor and i 2 148.56 12328
{wili} Opeminq and othar expenses n 4.200 45 3,424 28

Total expenses !!129. 16 I!J“.IS

3 Profit befors 1ax {3-4) 2!172.16 1!323.73

&  Tax expense: u

Current tax charge |Tedit) 38288 481 48
Delemed tax charge - (credit) 17314 {12427}
Total lax sxpenses 355.02 339.2%
T —— TEI—
T Profit tor the pariod {5-8) 1,616.14 984.52
8 Other comprehensive incoms
A lleml that will nol be reclassified o profi o los3 % -
of the defined benw(il liabililes | (assel) &89 T42
-Tu mpact on above {373 {1.87}
- Gaitviloss) on equity i through OCI 672 5.74
- Tax ingact on above [1.69) {2.45
Subtotal (A} 10,18 312,84
B. items that will be reclassified 1o profit of loss
- Gainv{loss) on farward contracts in hedging relalionship - -
- Tax impact cn above - -
Subtotal (B) 5 -
Other comprahansive income { A+B ) 10.18 12.84
1 3
e ———
9 Totat comprehansive incoms for the period (7+8) 1,828.33 997.38
10 Eamings per equity share ; 35
[1) Basic {Rs.) 17.16 10.48
(2) Diluted (Rs.) 17.02 10,38
Se¢e actompanying notn-l to the financial statements 1 to &1

As per our report of even dats attached
For 5. Ramanand Alyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. :000880N

P

R. Balasubramanisn
Partner
Membership No. : 080422

Place: Gurugram
Date : Apnl 29, 2022

Rama Mohan Rag’ Amara
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN: 00951394

spylos

Shrlnhnas Yashwant Joshi
Director
DIN: 85189637

™

pan

cretary



981 Cards snd Payment Services Limited
Casn ficw ststement for ine year ended March 31, 2022
(Figure in Rupsas Crome. unless otherwise wated)

Particulars

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

For the year anded
March 21, 2021

A. Cash flow from opemabng activities

Profit before tax for the year
Adjustmants for

Depreciaton ang amortsatian expanse

L.abdites witile Back

Imgarmant 'ozses & bag dabig

Matioss on derecagnann of fnanciad cvsthuments unde: amarbsed caa categary
Othe: mmerest ncorme

Casn nflaw from mierest necome

Snste based paymarts

Finance eont

Uridvacd ivergn exchange (Gan)dasa (mef)

Lasa/ Feefitt on sale of piocefty. plam & aguinment

P-aft on sam on investments

Far sakiston of deevutr. gs
9 profit bafors werking cagitat ch

Ad|ustment for changes in working capital

Adj tor {i " inop G assets:
Bark palance other 1an cash & cash squivalent

Traue recmvibles

Ctrer inancial asseis

Omner non fnarcal sasets

-oans

Adjusimants for mermasa | (decreage) in aparsting liabilities
Ctner inancal haodiuas

Othar non financal baodnes

Arowisions

Trade payaties

Cash from/ (used) in oparstions bafore taxes

Firgnce Cast Pad

Caat fmm! {usad} in operations befors taxes.
Dwect Laxws pasd (net of rafunds)
Net cash genrateds (uned) in operating activities

B. Cash flow trom investing sctivities

.rcnase of prop ety plant and squpment and nilangbie s1sats
Proceeas ko sale of propary. plant and equgment and intangrble aasaty
Puichase of investments . & .

Proceedas fom neestment

Nel cazn used in investing activitien (B)

€. Cash flew from financing dctivities

Praceeds fom tiue of share capriad { mnoluding sacurty premmum and share pund.ing akaiment)
Prozeeds from debi securdies

Repayment of debt sacunbes

Bemewings (ather than debt tacurtes)

Recaymant of susorsinaied kabidias

Irtenm dividend paed (induding dividend distnbuton tax)

2aymani of lease kabktes

Net cash fusea)/ ¢ ink ] <)

D. Net incrusse { (decresss) in aash and cash squivalents (A+B+C}

Cash and cash squivak as 2t the beginning of tha year

Cash and cash squlvalents a3 st the end of the yoar -
Nots:

1 The CashFlow $ 't has been N ACCONANCE Wi i ‘Indwect Viathad' apesfisd

Adl, 201, read with tha C.

{incisn A S } Rulgs 2015

As par our report of sven date attached
For 8. Ramansnd Aiyar & Co,
Chartersd Accountants

Firm Registration No, :000490N

R. Balasubramanan
Partner
Mambership No, : 080432

Place; Gurugram
Oate - April 29, 2022
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Ty 8455
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100.000 .
- 193.83)
{56 93) 15338
304454 3135
114,98 127.1%
542.20 51591
758,18 8412

ning AS 7. Statement of Cash Flows. a3 paf Accountng Standares spacbed under Section 133 of the Companas

For and an baha! of the Besrd of Directors

Rama Mohan Ra 4
Managing Dirseter & CEQ
DiN: 08831y

Chiaf F

Place: Gunigram Mumbd
Cate - Apri| 3, 2

3-\30:’;\:\“'

Shoniwas Yashwant Joshi™
Pireetor
DiN. o3189697
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1.Company overview

SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited, (“the Company” or *SBI Card") was incorporated on May 15,
1998 and is engaged in the business of issuing credit cards to consumers in India. The Company's
registered office is at Netaji Subhash Place, Wazirpur, New Delhi — 110034 and its principal place of
business is at DLF Infinity Towers, Gurugram, Haryana, 122002 and is domiciled in India. The Company
was incorporated as a joint venture between State Bank of India and GE Capital Mauritius Overseas
Investment with a shareholding of 60% and 40% respectively. On December 15, 2017, GE Capital
Mauritius Overseas Investments sold its entire stake (40%) in the Company to State Bank of India
(14%) and CA Rover Holdings (26%).

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company was converted to Public Limited from Private
Limited, and Registrar of Companies has issued fresh certificate of incorporation dated August 20,
2018.Further on March 12, 2020 fresh equity shares were allotted pursuant to Initial Public Offer {IPO}
and Company was listed with effect from March 16, 2020 on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange of India (NSE).

The Company is a Non-Deposit accepting Systemically Important Non-Banking Financial Company
(NBFC-ND-SI) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RB!) vide Registration Number 14.01328 under
section 45 1A of the RBI Act,1934. Accordingly, all provisions of the Reserve Bank Act 1934 and all
directions, guidelines or instructions of the RBI that have been issued from time to time and are in force
and as applicable to a Non-Banking Financial Company are applicable to the company.

The Company also acts as corporate insurance agent for selling insurance policies to credit card
customers. The Company has been granted license on March 01, 2012 by the Insurance Regulatory &
Development Authority (IRDA) under the Insurance Regulatory & Development Authority {insurance
brokers} regulations, 2002 to act as a corporate insurance agent, valid up to March 31, 2025

On April 29, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the financial statement of the Company and
recommended for consideration and adoption by the shareholders in its Annual General Meeting.

2.Compliance with IND-AS's
21.  Statement of Compliance

These financial stalements of the Company are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) (to
the extent notified).

Further the Company has complied with all the directions related to implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed for Non-Banking Finance Company [NBFC] in accordance with
Reserve Bank of India [RBI] notification dated March 13, 2020,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use.

3.Basis of preparation of financial statements
3.1, Use of estimates

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements is in conformity with the financial reporting
framework applicable to the Company requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of assets and liabilities as at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Examples of such estimates include provision for expected credit loss, estimated useful life of
Tangible Assstsrand provisions and contingent liabilities. Actual resuits may differ from the estimates

tafinity Tower-C,

DLF Cyber City,
Gurgaon
122002




SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any changes in eslimates are recognised
prospectively. Refer Note 4.16 for critical estimates and judgements applied in preparation of financial
statements,

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that
the Company shall be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern assumption. In making this
assessment, the Management has considered & wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the pandemic from COVID-19

COVID-19 pandemic has caused volatility in Indian economy throughout the year due to imposition of
localized/regional lockdowns which has led to disruptions in business and individual activities. While
economy is recovering from the pandemic, the extent to which any new wave of COVID-19 will impact
Company's results will depend on ongoing as well as future developments, which are highly uncertain,
including, among other things, any new information concerning the severity of the COVID-19 pandemic
and any action to contain its spread or mitigate its impact whether government-mandated or elected by
the Company

3.2, Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest Crores (up to
two decimals), unless otherwise stated.

4,Significant Accounting Policies
4.1. Revenue recognition

The Company’s operating revenues are comprised principally of service revenues such as Interest
income on financial assets i.e. loans advanced, membership fee earned, transaction revenue earned on
interchange including target incentives offered by network partners. Other fee and charges include
cheque bounce charge, late fees, over limit fees etc. The Company also earns income from
investments made.

Revenue is measured, as set out in Ind AS 115, at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of
when the payment is being made. Amounts disclosed are net of returns, trade discounts, rebates, value
added taxes.

4.1.1. Interest income

Interest income includes

a. Interest income on dues from credit card holders and on EMI based advances.

b. Interest Income from Fixed Deposit is recognised on accrual basis.

c. Interest Income from Investment is recognised on Effective Interest Rate basis
The Company recognises Interest income in line with Ind AS 109 and expense for all financial
instruments, except those classified as held for trading or designated at fair value are recognised in
‘Interest income’ and ‘Finance expense’ in the statement of profit and loss using the effective interest
rate method (EIR). The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying

amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. EIR is calculated by considering all costs
and income-attributable to all acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial ltability and it

F 6
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41.2.

41.3.

SBI] Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

represents a rate that exactly discount estimated future cash payments / receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset/ liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or the amortised cost
of a financial liability.

In case of credit-impaired financial assets, the Company recognises interest income on the amortised
cost net of impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR

Income from fees and services

The Company sells credit card memberships to card holders, income earned from the provision of
membership services is recognised as revenue over the membership period consisting of 12 months at
fair value of the consideration net of expected reversals/ cancellations

Other service revenue consists of value-add services provided to the card holders. Other service
revenues are recognised in the same period in which related transactions occur or services rendered.

Interchange fees are collected from acquirers and paid to issuers by network partners to reimburse the
issuers for a portion of the costs incurred for providing services that benefit all participants in the
system, including acquirers and merchants. Revenue from interchange income is recognised when
refated transaction occurs, or service is rendered.

Service Charges

The Company enters into contracts with co-brand pariners and other service providers for marketing,
sales and promotional activities. The income is recognised in the same period in which related
performance is done as per the terms of the business arrangements

Income from business process management services is recognised when (or as) the company satisfies
performance obligation by transferring promised services to the customer.

Business Development Incentive

The Company enters into long-term contracts with network partners for various programs designed to
build payments volume, increase product acceptance. Revenue recognition is based on estimated
performance and the terms of the business arrangements. The Company identifies contract{s) with a
customer and its performance obligations under the contract. determines the transaction price and its
allocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognises revenue only on satisfactory
completion of performance obligations

Insurance Commission Income

The Company acts as corporate insurance agent for selling insurance policies to credit card customers
and the income arising therefrom is recognised in the same period in which related transactions occurs
or services rendered at fair value of consideration net off expected reversals/cancellations.

Dividend Income and Income from Sale of Investments
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Excess of sale price over purchase price of mutual fund units is recognised as other income at the time
of sale

Unidentified receipts & Stale cheques

The total unidentified receipts which could not be credited or adjusted in the customers’ accounts for
lack of complete & correct information is considered as liability in balance sheet. The estimated
unidentified receipts aged more than 6 months and up to 3 years towards the written off customers is
written back as income on balance sheet date. Further, the unresolved unidentified receipts aged more
an thﬁgeﬁfs are also written back as other income on balance sheet date.

7




SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The liability for stale cheques aged for more than three years is written back as other income.
4.1.8. Recovery from bad debts

Recovery from bad debts written off is recognised as other income based on actual realisations from
customers. Any recovery over and above the actual write-off is accounted for as miscellangous income

4.2, Expenditure

Expenses are recognised on accrual basis. Expenses incurred on behalf of cther companies, for
sharing personnel, etc. are allocated to them at cost and reduced from respeclive expense
classifications. Similarly, expense allocation received from other companies is included within
respective expense classifications

4.3, Finance cost

Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds are recognised using the EIR. Any expenditure which is directly attributable to borrowing is
capitalized and amortised over the life of borrowing loan. Borrowing cost also include exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

4.4, Property, Plant and Equipment
441, Recognition and Derecognition

Property, Plant and equipment including capital work in progress are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes,
duties, freight and other incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and
installation of the concerned assets. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost
for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit & loss when the
asset is derecognised. The assets are fully depreciated over the life and residual value of the assels is
considered as NIL, for the purpose of depreciation computation.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation /
development as at the balance sheet date

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted accordingly, if appropriate.

4.4.2. Depreciation on Propetty, plant and equipment
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method using the useful lives

of the assets estimated by management and in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies
Act 2013. The useful life is as follows:

) finkoity Tower-C,

DLF Cyber Cuty,
vrgaon
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Description Useful Life
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Office equipment 5
Computers & Computer Equipment 3
Owned Vehicles 8
Computer Server 6

Improvements of leasehold property are depreciated over the period of the lease term or useful life,
whichever is shorter.

Right-of-use assets - Refer note 4.8.
4.5. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets comprise purchase of software & Internally developed project. Software is recognised
at cost and amortised using the straight line method over a period of three years. Internally developed
projects are also recognised at cost and amortised using the straight line method over period of two to
five years based on management’s estimate of its useful life. Useful life of Intangible assets represents
the period over which the Company expects to derive the economic benefits from the use of the asset.

Intangible assets under developments are intangible assets that are not ready for the intended use as
on the balance sheet date and are disclosed as Intangible assets under development.

An item of intangible assets and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit & loss when the asset is
derecognised,

4.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use
Recoverable amount is determined for an individua! asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Company’s assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Company also regularly assesses collectability of dues and creates appropriate impairment allowance
based on internal provisioen matrix. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised camying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life,

4.7, Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
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added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial
liahility.

Subsequent Recognition

{n Non -derivative financial instruments

Financial Assets

Financial assets are carried at amortized cost using Effective Interest rate method (EiR}).

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset to collect contractual cash flows and the conlractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest [SPPI]
on the principal amount outstanding.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method:

The effective interest rate method is 2 method of calculating the amortised cost of financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the expected life. Income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on an effective interest rate basis for financial assets other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL).

EIR is determined at the initia! recognition of the financial asset. EIR is subsequently updated for
financial assets having floating interest rate, at the respective reset date, in accordance with the terms
of the respective contract.

Once the terms of financial assels are renegotiated, other than market driven interest rate movement,
any gain/ loss measured using the previous EIR as calculated before the modificalion, is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss in period during which such renegotiations occur

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI].

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income if it is
held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
[SPPI).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL]:

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through profit or loss.

Equity Investments designated under [FVOCI]

The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. All fair value changes of equity
instruments excluding dividend are recognised in OCIl and are not available for reclassification to the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar
financial assels) is primarily derecognised (i.e,, removed from the Company's stalement of financial
position} when;

o the rights {o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
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« the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass through” arrangement and either;

« the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets, or

« the Company has retained the contractual right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset
but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to cne or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether il has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised.

Where the enlity has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial assets, the financial asset is not derecognised. Where the Company has neither transferred a
financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent
of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial assets subsequently measured at amortised cost are generally held for collection of
contractual cashflow. The Company on looking at economic viability of certain portfolios measured at
amortised cost may enter into immaterial and/or infrequent transaction of sale of portfolio which doesn’t
affect the business model during of the Company.

Impairment of financial agsets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial asset and credit risk
exposure;

» Financial assets measured at amortised cost,
» Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),

For recognition of impairment loss on Loans to customers, where no significant increase in credit risk
[SICR] has been observed, such assets are classified in “Stage 1" and a 12 months ECL is recognised.
Loans that are considered to have significant increase in credit risk are considered to be in “Stage 2°
and those which are in default or for which there is an objective evidence of impairment are considered
to be in “Stage 3". Lifetime ECL is recognised for stage 2 and stage 3 Loans, At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

Further, for corporate portfolio, the Company's credit risk function also segregates loans with specific
risk characteristics based on trigger events identified using sufficient and credible information available
from internal sources supplemented by external data. Impairment allowance for these exposures are
reviewed and accounted on a case by case basis. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the
corporate loan improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12- months
ECL. For further details refer to note 37.2.2

For trade receivables and other financial assets, the Company uses a provision matrix (simplified
approach) to determine impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of receivables. The provision matrix
is based on its historically observed default rates and management judgement/ estimates over the
expected life of receivable

"
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Write off policy:

Loans are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectation of recovering the financial
asset {either in its entirety or a portion of it). A write off constitutes a derecognition event.

The Company estimates such write off 1o get triggered on accounts which are overdue for 191 days or
more from payment due date. Further, for certain commercial accounts carrying specific provision and
for certain categories of retail accounts in Stage 3, where the dikelihood of recovery of the outstanding is
remote, the Company may frigger an early charge off. Recoveries resuiting from the Company's
enforcement activities will result in other Income impairment gains.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

De-recoanition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
medication is treated as the derecognition of the originai liability and the recognition of a new liability
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

{i) Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as forgign exchange forward contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The Company does not
use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The counterparty to the Company's
foreign currency forward contracts is generally a bank. The Company has derivative financial
instruments which are not designated as hedges.

Any derivative that is not designated as hedge is categorized as a financial asset or financial liability, at
fair value through profit or loss account.

Hedging

At the inception of 2 hedge relationship, the Company formaily designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes {o apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company designates certain foreign exchange
forward contracts as cash flow hedges {0 mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposure on booked
exposures, The documentation includes the Company's risk management objective and strategy for
undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of
the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the
hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair vaiue or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedge

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value and are re-measured at subsequent reporting
dates. The Company designates only the change in fair value of the forward contract related to the spot
component as the hedging instrument. The forward points of the currency forward contracts are
therefore excluded from the hedge designation The designated forward element is amortized in profit
or loss account over a systematic basis. The change in forward element of the contract that relates to
the hedge item is recognised in other comprehensive income in the cost of hedging reserve within
equity. Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or foss in the
period in which the hedged item hits profit or loss.

When a hedged transaction occurs or is no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or loss
recognized in cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

4.8, Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease If fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of an identified asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right
1o use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of Computer server and Building. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset

(i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and

(iil) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a
term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low
value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assels and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assels are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for
recoverability whenever events aor changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of tmpairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amorized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payment that depends on index or a rate, and amounl to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if not readily determinable, the Company uses incremental borrowing rates. Lease
liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the
Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated}

4.9.Income-tax expense
Current Tax

Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or
recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards {(ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates prescribed therein
The tax rates and tax laws used 1o compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date

Current income tax relating to item recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity). Current tax items are recognised
in correlation ta the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in equity

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred lax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utiised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting
date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized, or the liability is settied, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date Deferred tax
relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement
of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaclion either in OC| or direct in equity.

4.10. Foreign currency
Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the
exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance sheet date

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as income
or expense in the pericd in which they arise with the exception of exchange differences on gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e, translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or
profit or loss, respt!a__ctively.
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Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge foreign currency risk of an existing asset/ liability

The Company enters into derivative contracts in the nature of forward contracts with an intention to
hedge its existing liabilities. Derivative contracts being financial instruments not designated in a hedging
relationship are recognised at fair value with changes being recognised in profit & loss account.

4.11. Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
services are recognised in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabililies are settled. the liabilities are presented
as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust maintained
with SBI Life insurance Company limited. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the
Company contributes to the Company Gratuity Scheme. The difference, if any, betwgen the actuarial
valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as
assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. the Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

s Service cosls comprising current service costs, past-service cosls, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine setttements

o Netinterest expense or income

« Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
eamings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.”

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excesses recognised as an asset to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Long Service Award

The Company’s long service award is defined benefit plan. The present value of obligations under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final
obligation. e
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The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows The discount rates used
for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
yields on Government securities as at Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to
the terms of related obligations.

Compensated Absences

Accumutated leaves which is expected to be utilised within next 12 months is treated as short term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitiement and is discharge by the year end
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year
from the balance sheet date is recognized based on undiscounted value of estimated amount required
to be paid or estimated value of benefit expecled to be availed by the employees. Liability in respect of
compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance
sheet date is estimated based on an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which is by way of accumulating compensated
absences arising during the tenure of the service is calculated by taking into consideration of availment
of leave. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within
one year from the balance sheet date is recognized based on undiscounted value of estimated amount
required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by the employees. Liability in
respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after
the balance sheet date is estimated based on an actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

National pension scheme (NPS)

The Company makes contributions to National Pension System (NPS), for qualifying employees. Under
the Scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to NPS.
The contributions payable to NPS by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employee stock Option Plan

Employees of the Company receive remuneralion in the form of equity setiled instruments, for
rendering services over a defined vesting period. Equity instruments granted are measured by
reference to the fair value of the instrument at the date of grant in accordance with Ind AS 102.

The expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss with a corresponding increase to the
share-based payment reserve, a component of equity. The equity instruments generally vest in a
graded manner over the vesting period. The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed over
the vesting period of the respective tranches of such grants. The stock compensation expense is
determined based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest.

The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
equity-settled employee benefits reserve.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity
and dilutive polential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results would be anti-
dilutive.

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of equity share outstanding during the period. Diluted
earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit atiributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings pe
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equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the
proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value {i.e. the average market
value of the outstanding equity shares)

4.13. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If
it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial staiements. However, contingent assels are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset
and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs

4.14. Provision for reward points redemption

The Company has a reward point's program which allows card members to earn points based on
spends through the cards that can be redeemed for cash, gift vouchers and retail merchandize. The
Company makes paymenls to its reward partners when card members redeem their points and creates
provisions , based on the actuarial valuation by an independent valuer, to cover the cost of future
reward redemptions. The liability for reward points cutslanding as at the year-end and expected to be
redeemed in the future is estimated based on an actuarial valuation

4.15. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash balances in bank, funds in transit
lying in nodal account of intermediaries/payment gateway aggregators and highly liquid investments
with maturity period of three months or less from date of investment that are readily convertible to
known of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

4.16. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

{) Revenue Recognition: Application of the various accounting principles in Ind AS 115 related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires us to make judgments and estimates. Specifically.
complex arrangements with nonstandard terms and conditions may require significant contract
interpretation to determine the appropriate accounting. The Company consider various factors in
estimating ftransaction volumes and estimated marketing activities larget fulfilment, expected
behavioural life of card etc.

{In  Business development incenlive: Estimation of business development incentives relies on forecasts of
payments volume, card issuance etc. Performance is estimated using, transactional information -
historical and projected information and involves certain degree of future estimation

() Card life: Estimation of card life relies on behavioural life trend established basis past customer
behaviour / observed life cycle

(IV) Differences between actual results and our estimates are adjusted in the period of actual performance

(V) Management is required to assess the probability of loss and amount of such loss with respect to legal
proceedings, if any, in preparing of financial statements

(V1) rogegty, Plant and equipment: The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and
pai nd ofﬂﬁh reporting period. The lives are based on historical experience with simita
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assets as well as anticipation of fulure events, which may impact their life, such as change in
technology.

{VIl) Impairment of financial assets: A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL such as,

s Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL {Portfolio
segmentation)

s Defining default
»  Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk.
« (Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for measurement of ECL.

s Use of significant judgement in estimating future economic scenario to calculate management
overlay over base ECL model.

(VItl) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

« In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation The management works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

s |nformation about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of
various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 38

« All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

¢ Input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1— Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

= For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period

(iX) Cost of reward points: The cost of reward point includes the cost of future reward redemption which is
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future

{X) Defined Benefit Plans (Gratuity): The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of
the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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(Xl) Lease: The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of ind
AS 116. Identification of a lease reguires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount
rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend
the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if
there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the
incremental borrowing rate specific to the fease being evaluated or for a portiolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

4.17. Recent pronouncements

i) Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022, as below.

ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale
proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or
loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of
property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
there is no impact on its financial statements.

ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment
specifies that the 'cost of fulfiling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract {examples would be direct [abour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts {an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfiling the contract). The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early
adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact is not
expected to be material.

Ind AS §09- Financial Instruments-

{i) The amendment specifies that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. In
determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other ‘s beha!f. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no
impact on its financial statements.

{ii)y If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortized over the
remaining term of the modified liability. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, The Company has evaluated the amendment

-- there is no-impact on its financial statements.
&

v 19
vy {Infinity Tower-C,
DLF Cyber Caty,
Gurgaon
122002



SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

iy Reserve Bank of India (RBI) issued Master Directions - Credit Card and Debit Card — issuance
and Conduct Directions, 2022 vide notification no DoR.AUT. REC.N0.27/24.01041/2022-23 daled
April 21,2022, These directions cover the general and conduct regutations relating to credit, debit
and co-branded cards which shall be read along with prudential, payment and technology & cyber
security related directions applicable to credit, debit and co-branded cards, as issued by the
Reserve Bank. These directions will be applicable from July 1, 2022. The Company is assessing
the impact of the above mentioned circular and will take necessary action within the prescribed

timelines,
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801 Cards and Payment Services Limiled
Neotes torming part af the ! il
{Figurw in Rupsas Croms, uniess othetwisa stated)

§. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As st March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Balance wilh banks (of ihe nature of cash and cash equivalents)
Cusrent Accounts ® 1775 1412
Funds in transst (hing 1 nodal account of inter pay g W BgOTeg: |22 522 49
Depauty with matunty kess then 3 months. 108 59
] in Gi S wilh tatuity less than thres months™ 104 19
Total 158,16 M
*Curreni Account balsnce for the pencd ended March 31 2022 includes Rs 0. 74 Crores hekt in Esctow account to mesl IPO axpenses (for yoar anded March 31, 2021 Rs 2.02 Crores)
** The balances heid as Invesiment in Govarnment Secunties wilh matunty of lass 1han three manths as al March 31 2022 are as (olows
Parlkculans Face Valus Units Amount
910TO18062022 100 10.500.000 00 104.18
Taotsl 10,500.000.00 10419
Thera wat NIL batance hald a1 n G with matnty of less i:an three months as al March 31 2021
6. Bank balance olber than cash and cash squivalani
Patticulars As at March 31 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Depcuts (under Lien) with onginal matanty for more than 3 months ai7 T
Earmarkod balances with bank
Unpad dividend * 23587 oo?
Non moving credit balsnce of customars 19312a 5305
Undentied reciepts 01y L3
Linpaxd exgraba to customers 015 Q18
TOTAL 248.33 T8.80
* Unpaid dividend amounbng Rs. 235 87 Crares {0 07 Cirore for FY 2018-20 and Rs. 235 80 Crores for FY 202122 {gross of TDS amount)} (previous yaar Rs. 007 Crore for FY 2018-20)
7. Derivailve Financial | {Assets)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Partt
(I} Currency Darivativas
~Spal and lgrwardsy 0.0
Totat = o.10
Partll
{i) Cash Flow hedging
-Cunency denvabves - 810
Total = g.10
Refer note no, 3811
8. Trade recetvable
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March Jt, 2021
To ba ualised within twslva monthe after reponing date:
Trade Recer good - | 188 47 8152
Trade Receivablas which have significant inciease in Credil Risk (L) 034
Loss:- Impairment loss allowance {004 0.349)
8047 81.57

Tousl

- No iradw receivables are dus o dieciors. of oihet oHficers ol the Comparty either sévetally of jointly with any oiber parson

- No trads recervables are due from firma including LLP, private companiea respectvely in which any duector is 8 pariner a disector or & member
~Tha average cred! pericd /s 30-80 days. No interest is charped on trada 1eceivables from the date of the invoica.

Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule s of March 31, 2022

Outstanding for following pariods from due date of paymants

Particutars Unbitled Mot Dua Lessthan® G menths -3 Yaar (-2 Tears 73 Years More than } years

monihs Total

[u]! Trade . - i good 195 1139¢ 3495 ] el . w7
M} Undisputed Trade Recsivables - which hava sigrificand incresse in credit nak - - - .

i U d Trade Receivables - cred i - »
{w} Dspuled Trade Receivables - considered good - -
iv) Cisputed Trace Recervables - which kava significant incresse in credi mek - -
(vi} Draputed Tracio Receivables - Credil impaited - -
Total Gross 19.61 111.90 34.95 .04 - - s 188.51
— —

Tiada Receivables Ageing Schedule as of March 31, 2021

Ouistanding lor lollowiny periods trom dus date of payments
Particutars Unbilled  NotDue  Lassthané & months .1 Year  1-2Years 2.3 Yaars More than 3 years ol
months

I} Undi d Trade receivables - i good 252 182 117 . E - g .52
(W) Undlisputed Trade Receivsbie « which have significant incresse in credil msk oM E 034
(ipL Trade R by - crodil | . F = s

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - convidered good E -
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have sigmficant inciasse in credi risk - . - = -
(vi) Cvaputed Teads Recewables - credit impaired - - - -

Total- Grogs 22.82 57.82 1.17 0.34 - - -+ 51.8
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SB) Cards and Paymant Sarvices Limited
Notes lorming part of the financial statemenis
{Figure in Rupess Croms, unkess otherwisa statad)

9. Loans

As at March 31, 2022

e

Ax at March 31, 2011

At Amortized Cant

L1

Other:Loans & advances 10 customars

To be 'euksed within iwaive months after repovbing dale
Ta be reaksed afiat twelve months alte! repodting date
Tolal (A} Gross

Leas - Impaument fosa allowance

Totsi (A} Nat

8]

{i} Secured by lien oa fixed deposts and inanoal puarantees
(#) Unsacured

TJotal (B)- Gross

Leas - Impairment loss aligwance

Total (B)- Net

{C} Loans in India

(i} Public sector

{ii) Cibwrs

Totl {C}- Gross

Less - Impairment ksid allowance

Total (C} Nat

Referncte 3812

Loans are granied to promoters, directors, KMPs and the relsied parties {as delined under the Companies Act 2013) in the normal course of business
n) repayable on demand NIl
b) wittvout specifying any lefms of pertcd of repayment  Nil

The compary hae given the ¢redn card 4] KIMPs and the relaied parties in the normal course of bustness e shown a3 below

As at March 31, 7022

Amount of loan or
Type of Borrowsr advanca in the nature
of loan outatanding

Parceniage to tha total Loans and
Advances in the nature of loans

Promalers ooz 0.00%
Dwectors o0 Q.00%
KMPs o0 Q00%
Reiatad Parties 025 0.00%

Left blank intentionalty

22

2724895 2144254
401242 ish29
N.281.37 25,112.83
1.054 12) {1854 69)
30.187.28 21.459.14
G0 N6 25
30 54107 24797 58
N, 28137 2511383
(30T {1,654 88)
JC.187.23 21.45%.14
— v—
1008 492
312713 2510891
2837 2511383
{1094 12) {1854 65)
30,187.25 23.489.14
As a1 March 31, 2021
Amouni of loan or Petcanlage to the iotal
advance in the nsiure of  Loans and Advances in
lcan autstanding the nature of loans
008 0.00%
oo 0.00%
oo 0.00%
[1A].) 0.00%

O | OLF Cyber Cnly.'
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8B Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming pant of the financial statemenis
{Figurm in Rupeses Crotes, unkess otherwise stated)

10. Investmanis

As at March 31, 2022

As al March 31, 2021

Particulars
[L]]
At Amorilzed Cost
Investmant 10 be realised within twelve months sftar the mporting dats
in ara 62325
Investmaent 10 be realised after twelve months after the reporting date
[ Hin G - 400 26 2
Equnty instrurmonts. -
At Fair Valus through Other Compmhensive Income
(nvestmant 1o be realised alter twelve months after the reporiing date
Equity instruments 1752 1
Total 1.297 1% 957.88
8)
{i) Investmani outslde India - =
{ii) investnrent in India 1,297.19 957.56
Total 1,297.19 98756
—
)
Less- Allowancs tor Impsirmant Loss - -
Total Net {A-C) TR 957.54
The balances held as Invesiment as at March 31, 2022 wo as icllows:
Particulary Face Valus Units Amouni
Invastment In Govermmant Securtes (Current}
1820 TH04052022 100 7.500.000.00 L )
1020T819052022 100 1%5.500.000 00 15424
W40TR22002022 100 %5000 000 00 %58
102DTB28072022 100 7.000.000 DO €907
1020TB04082022 100 20 500000 00 20208
1820TB01202022 100 13.500.000 00 22
354DTH13102022 100 12.500.000 00 12243
3B40TBO2112022 100 7.500.000 00 na
09.000.000.00 078.31
in ! ies {Non-Current)
7.32% GS2024 100 2.000.000.00 8507
08.18% 552024 100 12,500,000 00 13218
5 22% 552025 100 18.000.000.00 18273
Total 20.500.000.00 400.96
Equity Instrumaents {Amortisad Cost)
SBI Foundation * 10 1,601 3 =
Total 1.001.00 -
* Face value of the equity instrument as on March 11, 2022 is Rs 10,010
Equity Instruments {lalr valus through OCI)
Online PSB Loans Umited 0 112,998 00 1792
Totnl 112.996.00 1791
——
The balances hekt as Investmen| a3 sl Marth 31, 2021 aie as loliows
Parilculars Face Value Units Amouni
[l in {Current)
3BDTE26082021 100 $00.000 00 493
1820TR20¢52021 100 $1.500.000 00 11450
B4DTR15082021 100 28.000.000 00 278 43
JB4DTE20052021 100 18.500.000 00 164 28
WA0TB27012022 100 $.500.000 00 5311
Tatal $1.000,000.60 $21.25
e—
e in 5 {Non-Current)
7.32% GS2024 100 8,000,000.00 ars
B8.18% G52024 100 12.500.000.00 13359
$.22% G505 oD 10:000 000 00 10238
Total 30.500.000.00 311
Equity Instruments (Amortised Cost)
SEI Foundation * 10 1.00100
Total 1,001.00 -
* Face value ol the equily Instrumant as on March 31, 2021 is Rs 10.010
Equity {tair valus th h 0%}
Onkne PSB Loany Limited 10 112.998 0O 11.20
Total 112.996.00 'II.A

Laft blank ntentionally
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5Bl Cards and Paymani Services Limited
Notes forming part of the linancial statements
{Figure in Rupses Crores, unleis olherwise stated)

11. Other tinanclal agyely.

Total

Laft blank intentlonally

24

Particulers As at March 11, 2022 As al March 31, 2021
To be realised within twelve months atter reporiing dare:
Conlract Azset

Recoivables conudered good - unsecured 288 7995
Secunty depouts

‘Umsecured. considered good 481 aom

U d. whech have s TCIORYE in Ciodil ek 198 t41
Other recovatable - Consideted good 058 185
Other rex which have signfi [ in ceedit rak na 048
Leas -« Impaitmant lozs allowaice 239 {181}
Sub total 73.00 LX)
To be realisad after twaive months stter reporting date:
Comract Assat

Recer . good - Lk 1828 8538
Secunly deposits

Unsecured, considared guod 2008 1960
Sub total 138,32 104.58
Total pirerd 50T
* Fisier note 38
12. Curreni tax liabilities/asasts {nat)
Particulars Ay al March 11, 2022 As sl March 31, 2021
Tax assatinat)
Ta be setlied within twetve months after ieporting date
Advance income fax {nat of provision} 41.24 52 47

[IFLE LT
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T e ST n e a

s8I Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

13. Dedarred Tax Assets [Net)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

To be adjusted after twelve months after reporting date:
-Deferred tax assel 21853 g5k 08

Total 218.53 355.09

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Recognised in other DTA Rate Change and

Particulars Opening balance Recognised in profit and loss comprahansive income Previous yaar trusup Closing balance
Deferred tax {liabilities}assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment 3.18 477 - {315) 780
Membership & Processing fee 102.80 2240 . . 12520
Provision for expenses 22,44 433 - (7.95) 18.82
Staff benelils and staulory dues 17.01 {1.96) (2.39) 8.23) 443
Fair valuation of derivatives {0.04) 004 - - 000
Fair valuatien of Investment through OCI {2.45) - {1.03) - {348}
Amoriisation of card acquisition cost {167.68) (22.27) . - (189 85}
Provision for doubtful debts & ECL 420 66 {165.34) - 0.95 25627
Debt Issue expenses (1.10} 058 - . (0 52)
Income on investment 0.26 1.35 - {1.66) {0.05)
Total 395.09 {156.10) {3.42} {17.04) 218.53

There are no unrecognised deductable temporary differences.

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Recognised in other DTA Rate Change and

Particulars 2l Recog LCLCILELT L comprehensive income Previous year trueup SR
Dafarred tax {liabilities)/assets in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment 074 243 - 0.02 3.18
Membership & Processing fee 95.87 6.82 - - 102 80
Provision for expenses 29.45 674 - {13.76) 22 44
Staff benefits and stautory dues 6.70 a7 {1.87) 347 170
Fair valuation of derivatives o {0.05) - . {0.04)
Fair valuation of Investment through QCI - - (245} - (2.45)
Amortisation of card acquisition ¢ost {18932} 21.64 - E (167 .68}
Provision for doubtful debts & ECL 332.85 87.30 . 0.51 42066
Defined benefit obligation 012 (0.13) - - {0.00)
Debt Issue expenses (1.40) 0.30 - B {1.10)
Income on investment - 0.26 . = 0.26
Total 27513 134.03 {4.32) {9.76} 395.09

There are ng unracognised deductable temporary differences.

Left blank intentionally

Gurgaon
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5BI Cards and Payment Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

14. Property, plant and equipment, Intangible assets & Right of use assels

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment
A. Canrying amounts of:
Fumiture & Fixture
Office equipment
Owned Vehicles
Computers including server {owned)

-Qwned

-On lease

Leasehold improvements
Vehicles on Finance Lease
Total

B. Capital work in progress
Capital work In progress
Total

Intangible Assets

A, Carrying value of other intangible assets
Computer software

Total

8. Intangible Assets under development
Intangible assets under development
Total

Right-of-use Assets
Vehicle

Computer server on [ease
Building

Total

Total

26

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

269 274
360 5.34
16 96 26 63
15.95 21.75
39.20 56.46
049 048
0.49 0.49
116.41 89.66
116.41 89.66
1375 958
13.75 9.58
—

127.72 103.79
156.13 58 19
283.85 161.98
453.70 318.17
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SBI Cards and Payment Sarvices Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupeas Crores, unleas otherwise stated}

14.2 Intangible Assels

tntangible assets under

Particulars Computer software development

At Cost

Balance at April 1, 2021 177 14 9.58

Additions B3.73 2078

Deletions . {16.61)

Balance at March 31, 2022 260.84 “H=5.

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Balance at Aprll 1, 2021 87.45 -

Amortisatlon charge for the year 56 98 -

Deletionsfadjustments - -

Balance at March 31, 2022 144.43 -
e

Net book value as on March 31, 2022 116.41 13.75

Particulars

Lomputer software

Intangible assets under
development

At Cost

Balance at April 1, 2020
Additions

Deletions

Balance at March 31, 2021

Accumutated amortisation and impalrment
Balance at April 1, 2020

Amortisation charge far the year
Detetions/ad)ustments

Balance at March 31, 2021

Net boak value as on March 31, 2021

{a) Intangible asset under develop

ageing schedul

Delails of imangible asset under development as on March 31, 2022 is as below'

129.34
4777

12 49
17.41
(20.02)

177.11

9.58
i

5156
35389

B7.45

89.66
M

Intangible asset under

Amount in Intangible asset under development for a perlod of

development Less than 1 year

12 years

2.3 years

More than 3 Years

Total*

Projects in progress 13.82

0.13

13.75

Project tamporaily
suspended

Total 13.62

0.13

13.75

Details of intangible asset under development as on March 31, 2021 is as below:

intangible asset under

Amount in Intanglble asset under development for a period of

developpment Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 Years

Total*

Projecis in progress 0.42

Project temporaily

suspended L
|Total 0.43

{b) Intangible asset under development compl

There are no Intangible assets under development which 's averdue or has exceeded its cost compared toits original plan as of March 31

28

2022 {Previous year Nil}

Infinity Tower.C,

DLF Cyber City,
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5B1 Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statemenis
{Figure in Rupeas Crores, unless otherwise stated)

14.3 Right-ol.Use assats

Particutars Computer server on lease Building Total
At Cost
Balance at April L, 2021 165.52 11594 281.48
Reclassified on account of adoptian of Ind AS116 - - -
Additions 60.77 12535 18612
Dispasals/adjustments {18.72) {20.32) (35.04)
Balance at March 31, 2022 207.57 220.97 428.54
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Balance at Apeil 1, 2021 61.73 5775 11948
Reclassilied/Creation on account of adoption of Ind AS116 - - -
Depreciation during the year 36.84 2741 64.25
Disposals/ad|ustments {18.72) {20 32) {36.04)
Balance at March 33, 2022 79.85 64.84 144.69
Net book value as on March 31, 2022 127.72 156.13 283.85
Particulars Computer server on lease Building Total
At Cost
Balance at Aprll 1, 2020[Refer note 4.8} 11869 11500 233.69
Reclassified on aceount of adoption of tnd A5116 - - .
Additions 46 83 595 52.78
Dispesalsfadjustments * - (5.01) (5.01)
Balance at March 31, 2021 165.52 115.94 281.48
B
Ac lated depreciation and Impai
Batance at April 1, 2020 3572 20.89 64.41
Rectassified/Creation on account of adoption of ind AS116 - - -
Depreclation during Ihe year 26.01 N7 57.29
Disposals/adjustments - (2.21} (2.21)
Balance at March 31, 2021 81.73 57.75 119.48
Net book value as on March 31, 2021 103.79 58.19 161.98
I E——

* Itincludes adjustmeni amounting te Rs 0.20 crores lakhs on account of change in future rental payments for lease locations

Fa)
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SB) Cards and Payment Sarvices Limited
Hotes lorming part of the financial statemanis
(Figure in Rupess Crores, unieas otherwiss siated)

13. Othat pon Ninancial assels
Particulars As al March 11, 2032 As at March 31, 2028
Ta be realised within twetve months alter eponing date:

Servica tax / GST recoverable
(Service 1ax recoverabls inciudes Pre-deposits for appeal and Show cause holices

Unascurad. conuderad good 12058 g2.78
Prepaid expenses nso 2998
Unamersed Card scguisiion cost 13520 axn
Cther advances

Unsecured, considerad good 5228 W20

1 , which have sigrficant in credd sk an (11}
Sub Total - Grozs 39.81 4818
Less - Imparment loss allowancs 00 (0 04)
Sub Total - Net (&) 339.60 24814

Ta ba reslisad after twelve monitis atier reporting date:

Service lax / GST recoverable
{Sarvice lax recoverabl inchalos Pre-deposits for appeal and Show cause nolices)
L

which have In creckt ngk 541 11370
Prepad siponses 10 1]
Unamaoniaed Card scquisstion cost 81944 501 04
Sub Tetal - Qross 520.18 T0z.40
Lazs - Imparment loss miowence 5411 M1
e
Sub Totsl - Net (B) 622.74 S4s.70
Total Net {A+B) 962.34 831.84
18. Payables
Particulars As at March 31,2021
Payabla within fweltva months stier mporiing date:
() Trade payobles®
(T} total ding dues of micro risos und /]
(i) total outsianding dues of creditors clher than micro snterpnses and small enterprses 28138
Total {A} 92118
{Il) Other payables
) lota) outstanding dues of micty enlerprises and smell srterpnses =
{H) Iotal oursianding dews of creditors other than micro enterpnses snd smafl enierpases
{@) totsl cutstancing dues lo employees 185 83
{b} iotal outstanding dues 1o capial credsiors. 922 w05
Total(B) 10.87 11.34
Tatal (A«B) 1,1
(") Average cradil period is 30 1o 120 days from the date of services rendered shd na inderesl is due on 3 M repeiting dale. The has finencial nsk mansgemend policies in place to ansure that all payables are paid within the
pre agtedd credi ierms
18.1 Disciesures under Section 22 of Ihe Micro, Small and Enterprises D: P Act, 2006
inteims of notification dated Deplember 4, 2015 ixsued by tha Cantral G of India, the related to ade payables a3 at the end of the period aie a3 loliows:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
{1) Pnincipal amount remainitg ungsed to any supplier as al the end of ihe accounbng period W
{i} Intevest due thareon remaituny Lnpaid to sny suppiior as at the end of the sccourting period E
{il) The smount of intersst paid siong with the amounts of e payment made lo the supplier beyond the appointed day
{iv} The amount ol intsrest dus and payabis for the period
{v) The smount of intereat sccrued and remairing unpaid at the end 2f Ihe accounting period
{vl} The amount of further interesl due and payable even in the suctesding year. unbl such date when tha intorest dues a3 above ate actunlly pad
Dues to Micro and Small Enterp have been to the exient such parties have been identfied on the basis of cied by the Tiys hes been rekied upan by the audto.
Trade Payables sgeing achedule as st March 3%, 2022
Cutstanding for [oHowing patiods irom dua date of paymants
Farticulsns Unbilled  Not Dus Lessthan§ 8 months -1 Year 12 Years 2.3 Years Mo than 3 years Total
months
{} MSME tes J48 080 . - . E »28
{liy Others 4593 11888 17.80 on : . o1t 1.080 54
{iil) Dwsputed ducs - MSME . . - . g i .
{iv} Disputedt dues- Cthers - -
Total 377.91 120.16 18.80 0.01 - . 0.11 1,116.30
— ot —
Trade Payablet sgeing acheduie as at March 31, 2021
Crutstanding for Tollowing panicds Irom dus dale of payments
Particulars Unbilied  Not Due Lessthané € months -1 Year 1.2 Yaars 2-) Yanrs Mora than J years Total
months
1) MSME . u . . - .
(i) Others THAY fa 4053 iy aar - o B2 34
(i) Disputed dues - MSME s v - : -
(v} Disputed duses- Cthers
Total 77141 §8.71 40.93 0.13 0.07 - 0.11 501.38
—_ e B m— —

Infiity Towes-C,
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statemants
(Figure in Rupaes Crores, unless oltherwlse stated)

17. Debt Securities

At amortized cost
Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
(A}
{i) From Others
Unsecured
{i} Commercial paper
- To be settled withun twelve months after reporting date: 81516 221214
{ii) Debentures
- To be seftied withan twelve months after reporting date: 1,485.18 18579
- To be settied afler twelve months afier reparting date 480500 353500
Tatal (&) 7,106,34 5.932.93
8)
Debl Secunties in india 7106 34 593293
Total (B) 7,106.34 5,932.9)
17.1 Details of non rtible deb es (NCD)

Particulars As at March M, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
8 10% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each {Redeamabte at par in May'21) - 11000
9.15% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each {Redeemable al par in Jun'22) 450 .00 450 00
B 55% Unsacured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each {Redeemable al par in Aug'22) 175.00 17500
7 B0% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000 000 each (Redesmable at par in Feb'23} 41000 41000
7 50% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Mar'Z3] 300 00 30000
6.85% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Radesmable at par in Jun23) 400 00 400 00
5 75% Unsecwed NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable a1 par in Nov'23) 500 00 50000
5.90% Unsacwed NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Feb'24} 550 00 550 00
5.70% Unsecwed NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in May'24) 45500 g
5 55% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each {Redeamable at par in June'2d) 500 00 E
5.70% Unsecirad NCOD of Rs 1,000,000 each {Redeamatle at par in Aug'24} 500 00 -

& 75% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000.000 each (Redeemable at par in Nov'24) 500 00 =
5 82% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each {(Redeemable at par in Dec'24) 65000 -
7.40% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Feb'25) 0000 300 00
6 00% Unsacured NCO of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeematble at par in Dec'25) 450 00 450 00
Total 6,140.00 3,645.00
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 151.18 75.79
Taial 6,291.18 3,720.78
M

EH
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of tha financial stataments
{Figura in Rupees Crores, unless otherwisa stated)

18. Borrowings {other than debt securities)

Particulars

As at March 3, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

A}
At amortized cost

{2} From Bank {Other than Related Party)
Unsaecured Loans (Refer note 18.1 below)

(i) Term loan

- To be setilad after twelve months after raporting date 499 95
{b) From Bank {Related Party)
Secured Loans (Refar note 18.2 below)
(i} Working capital loans
- To be setlled within twelve months after reporting dale 9393 64 8,134 93
{c) From Bank {(other than Related Party)
Secured Loans (Refer note 18.2 below)
(i) Worlung capital loans
- To be settiad within twelve months afler reporing date 478151 250558
Total {A) 14,680.10 10,683.52
——
(B)
Borrowings in India 14 680 10 10683 52
Total (B} 14,680.10 10,883.52
R
Note 18.1 Repayment achedule of term loan I as below :

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
4 95 % Unsacured Term Loan (Bullet repayment in Jun'25) 500 00 -
Total 500.00 .
Interest accrued and impact of EIR 0.05 =
Tota! 499.95 -

Note 18.2 Secured by

Primary Security Cotlateral Security Repayment tarms Guaranteed by

First Charge on entire current assels
of the company (prasent and futura}
including Hypothecalion of
Recaivables.

Dotalls of Default

First Charge on entire property. plant & equipments of the company
{presemnt and futura).

Quarterly retumns filled with banks are in agreemant with books of

account

Nil

Yes

Withen 12 monihs

Working capital loan as on March 312022 includes Cash Credil (Relaled Party) Rs 199 98 Crores (March 31. 2021 Rs 162 39 Crores}

Interest rate on warking capital loans varies from 3 90% 1o 5 35% and on Cash Credit facility varies from 7.05% lo 7 30%

‘e

o
g
7og Acrﬁ“//

il

NA
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58! Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise

19. Subordinated Liabilities

1]

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
{A)
Unsecured non-convertible debentures
- Redesmabla within twelve months after reporting ¢ate and 146 02 148 33
- Redeemable after twelve monins after reporting date 1.050 00 1,150 00
Total {A) 1,198.02 1,298.21
e —
(B)
Subordinatad Fabililies In India 1.196 02 129833
Tatal {B) 1,196.02 1,298.33
A ———

19,1 Details of non-convertibla debentures

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

S 00% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1 000 000 each (Redeamable at par in Nov'i21)
9 65% Unsecured NCID of Rs 1 000.000 each (Redesmable al par in Apr22)
8 30% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1.000.000 each (Redeemable at par in May'23}
8 10% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Oct'23)
9 55% Unsecured NCD of Rs 1,000,000 each (Redeemable et par in Jan'29)
8 99% Unsecured NCD of R3 1,000,000 each (Redeemable at par in Jun'29)

Total
Interest accrued and impact of EIR

Total

. 10000
10000 100.00
500 00 500.00
20000 200.00
250 00 25000
10000 100 00

1,150.00 1,250.00

46.02 48,31

1,196.02 1,298.33
N

Laft blank intentionally
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupess Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Net Debt reconcillation for the year ended March 31, 2022

Non Cash Changes

Particulars Opening Balance Cashflows Interest Foreign Exchanpe Closing balance
famortization Movemaent Othors

Debt Securities

Commercial Papers 2,212.14 (1,347.37) (4961} 5 815.16

Debentures 372079 2,495 00 7539 - 629118
Borrowings {other than dabt securities) & leasa liabilities

Working capital loans 10,663.52 3,516.56 0.08 - 14.180.15

Term Loan - 500.00 {0.05) - 439 95
Subordinated Liabilities

Debentures 1.268.33 {100.00} (2.31) - . 1.196.02

Total 17,894.78 5,064.19 23.50 - - 22,982.46
Nat Debt reconciliation for the year ended March 31, 2021

Non Cash Changes
Particulars Qpening Balance Cashflows tnterest Fareign Exchange Closing balance
famortization Movement Qthers

Debt Sacurities

Commercial Papers 254197 {311.88) {15.95) 221214

Debentures 32570 500.00 {36.52) 272079
Borrowings {other than debt sacurities) & lease liabilities

Working capital loans 10.297 .89 365.54 0.08 10.663 52

Foreign curmency working capital loans - - - -
Subordinated Liabilitles

Debentures 1.298.85 - (0.52) . - 1.298 33

Total 17,398.02 551.87 {52.91} - - 17,894.78

34
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881 Cards and Payman! Servicas Limited
Netes forming part of the fi int
(Figure in Rupaes Crores, unfess olherwiss slaled)

20. Other financlal liabilities

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars As at March 21, 7022

Payable within twelve manth after reporting period:

Linpat divicernis 21300 ao?
Pavable to Netwark Partners. B84 54 464 72
Excost amount i Cand halders 5512 22854
Lease kability 6238 57 34
Cteni iataidiey 1758 51
Payable aitar twelve months atier reporting date

Lease babikty 24007 11492
Total 1,572.8% 878.10
1. Provisions

Particulars Ag at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Employes Benalits

{i} Liabilities to be settied within twelve months after reporting date

- Provision fof compenssied atnence

- Provision for gratuty

» Provision far lang sarvice awsrds

- Prowsion for bonus & Incontve Payable
Sub Total (A)

¥} Liabilities 1o be settied after tweive months after reporting date

- Provnion for compensated abyence
- Provtaion for kong servics awards
Sub Total (B)
Othars

H) Liabllitias 10 be seltlad within twelve months alter reporting data

« Prowision for rewand points redemphicn *
Sub Tetal (€)

{it} Lisbilitles to be sstiled after twalve months after reporting date

- Piovision [of eward points redempion *
Sub Tolal (DY
Total (A+B+C+D)

* Reter nota 40

22. Cthar non financial labilities

Parliculars

4 50 384
000 am
188 145
45 8% 4097
2.0 48.87
1080 1330
444 138
1504 2088
26513 232 47
5.7} 3247
144 4t 10383
14441 109.63
477.3% 40085

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Liabilities 1o be sartiad within twatve menths aftar reporting date;
Revenue recoived in advince- Unamortsed mamisiship leey *

Statutory Kabilities
Feos recorved in advancs

Tatal
* Reler nole 38

35

44118 8584
260 35 2

50t 2453
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58| Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statemeants
{Figure in Rupees Crores, uniess otherwise stated)

23. Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 21, 2021
Numbar of Shares Amount Number of Shares Amount
Authorised Capital
Equity shares of R$ 10 each 1,500.000.000 1.500.00 1.500.000.000 1.500 00
1,500,000,000 1,500.00 1,500,000,000 1,500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity shares of Rs 10 each 943 172.489 943.18 940,525,456 940 53

TOTAL 942,172,489 943.18 940,525,456 940,53

{1y ReconcHiation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the and of the reponting year:

As at March 21, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Number of Shares Amount Humber of Shares Amount
Reconciliation of the numbear of shares
Balance as at tha beginning of the year 940,525 456 940.52 938,956,794 938 96
Movements® 2.647.033 2.65 1.568.662 157
Balance as at the end of the year 943,172,489 942.18 940,525,456 940,53

* During the year ended March 31, 2022, 2,647,033 Equilty shares (Previous year 1,568.662) of Rts 10 each has been allotied under ESOP scheme
{il} Rights, prefarences and restriction attached to shares

The company has only ona class of equity share having par value of Rs.10 per share Each holder of the equity shara is entilled to ¢ne vole per share In the liquidation of the company. the
holders of the equity shares will be entitled 1o receive the remaining assets of the company, afer distribution of all prelerential amounts

{iif} Shares held by Holding Company (face value of Rs. 10/- each)

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Number of Shares Amount Numbaer of Shares Amount
Shares held by State Bank of ndia 652,633,992 652.63 652,633,992 652.63
{iv) Shares hald by each shareholder holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number of Shares Numbaer of

Particulats % % Sharas
Shares held by State Bank of India * 69.20% 652,632,992 69.39% 652 633992
Shares held by CA Rover Holdings # NA NA 1161% 109,173,488

* As gt March 31, 2022 one share is held by nominee individual sharehalders of which State Bank is the beneficial owner.
# As on March 31. 2022 shareholding of CA Rover has gone down below 5%.

(v} Shares reserved far Issue under Employee Stock Option Plan
No of Stock opticns /

Particulars Equity shares
a_Number of equity shares approved/reserved far issue under Employee Stock Option Pian. 2019 to employees of the company drawn in 27.070.028
accordance with SEB) guidelines 1993 S

b. Option granied under the scheme up to March 31, 2022 13 475650
. Option cancelled up to March 31, 2022 and added back to pool for future grants 194 515
d. Option granied net of canceflation under the schame up to March 31, 2022 (d= b-c) 13,281,135
a. Balance available under the scheme for future granis (e= a-d} 14,688 833

{vi) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Promoier name Slate Bank of India State Bank of India
No of Shares 652,633,992 652,633,992
% of fotal shares £69.20% 69.39%
% Change during the year -0.19% 0.12%

Gurgacn
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forring part of the finsncial statements
(Figura In Rupees Crores, unlaas ciherwise stated)

24, Clhar aquity

Farticulars Ay 2t March 31, 2022 Ap xt March 31, 2021
Captsl redempton reserve {rafer note 24 1 balow) 4 a0
Statuiory renerve [Tefel note 24 2 below) 1338 08 101185
Ganeral resetve [eafer note 24 J balow) 1m7n 1308
CapRal [atva (0N Bccount of amatgamaton) {tater nole 24 4 below) (Min [EA R
Securmes Premms (refer noie 24 § below) 988 0% 93519
RAeansd earnngs (refer nate 24 & beiow) 448108 J41878
Shars opbons cutstanding sccount (refes nate 24 7 below) 4797 40 50
Shaie monay pending {relet note 24 8 Datow) - 292
Equity stvesimant thiough OCI [rater note 24 $ balow) 1232 hiry]
TOTAL $.809.32 3.381.50
24.1 Capital redemption resefve
Particulary

Aa st March 31,2022 As at March )1, 2021
Balsnce 43 ot tha begrirng of e year 34 340
Balanca av M the end of the yeat 140 3.40

Nsture and putpass of reserve; Whete 2 cOmpsny puithaset i3 own shares out of fraw reserve OF setulfin PrEMLM SSCOUNt, 8 SUM squal 18 Ihe nommal velue of the shates 30 purchased thall ba tanglerted 10 M captal redampbon reserve
ccaunt snd getads of such transtar shall be disclotad N the balance sheet The capisl redeMpton (4347 acCOunl May be appled by Ihe COMpary. = payng up umsszued Sha as =l e Company 1o be Haued 10 Mmembars of the Company 88 Tulfy
pad tonus thates

24.2 Statutory resetve
{Under Section 43-C of tha Resarve Bank of India Act, 1934)
As at March 21, 2032 Aa at March 31, 01

151185 4SS

t the begrrung of the year

Agd Transderred rom Retaned Esrnng @ 20% 21N 108 30
Batsnce an M the end of the year 1,135.08 1,011.83
Nalure and purposs of reserve: Statutory resenes o credted Datad on statutory requirements uhded Section 45-1C of the Resarve Bank of s Act. 1634 and # not svadable fof dntnbution 8y dncand

24.3 Genaral resarva

Particutars A at March 31,2012 &2 at Mareh 3, 2031
Batance ap atthe begrning of the year 1308 12
Add Amouni transferrad from Shase opLons outstanding pccount” 003 3]
Balance s at Iha end of the year 13.11 13.08
*Rafesncie 24 T

Nature and purpose of feserve: Ganersl reserve 5 the retanad sashing of e Company wiich sra kepl asda tut of company’s profi to mest future (kAGw O UnkNown) oblgabon

4.4 Caphal rensrve [on sccaunt of amalgamation)

Partculara As st March 31,3032 As st March 31, 2021
Balance at 31 the begnning of e yesr (7151) {7151
Balance as oi the end of the year |71.51) [71.81)
Nasture and putposs of reserve: Caplal resehve (egrtients & rasene which o crested pussuant o 91 of B Proceis o Servicas Private Lenied | S8 RIS, ) wela order passed Dy “on'ble Natonat Campary L
Trounal (NCLT) cated June 04, 2019 sftectve rom Aprd 01 2019

245 Secuniles premium

Patlieulsrs Ag at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Balance a3 af the begninng of Me year 93510 04 T4
Agd Dunng the parod * el nH
Agd Tranafet fram shar Optons Sutitandng account 1529 7T
Balsnca as at the #nd of the yasr 588.09 935.19

R £&h Be uthmed only lor kmaed purposed n accordance with the provisdn of the Companas Act, 2013

Nalure and purpose of resarve Securtws pramum m ubed 10 16c0rd T8 PremMAm on riue of sh

“ Dunng the yesr anded March 31 2022, adddon durng the year feptedants SHCUIESS Premasm racened on accounl ol ESOP Rs 37 81 Crores nd sdjustment of Company's share of IPO retaied expanses for Rs Nd Crotes {For the yesr ended
March 31 2021 sdditen durng the year reprasents sacurbed premum recened on accound of ESOP R 22 30 Crores and sdjustmant of Company's share of IPO relsled sxpenses tor A5 018 Crores)

4.8 Retained earnings

Particulars Az #l Mareh 1, 7022 Aa at Mareh 31, 2021

Balance a1 ot the bagnning of e yer 143878 271951

Ay Proftfar the pened 1,818 14 984 52

Less Intervii equity dradend (2315 79) (9390

Agd Tesnsler From Cther Comprahenshe income £3: ]

Less Transter to Statutory resarve ($ecton 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of inda Act, 1934) 132323)

Balance as st the end of the year 4.481.08

Nasture and purpose of reserve: R 48inngs 1re smount of P »ng of ey

4.7 Share optione outstanding sccount

Particulan As at March 34, 2022 As gt March 31, 201

Balynce a3 at tha begnpng of the yeat 4050 th 18

Add Qunng the Pensd 2279 3018

Lass Transter on sliotment of shares to employees puriuant to ESCP scheme {1520 777

Less Transier to general resarve 0 031 009

Balance as u the end of the yesr 47 lﬂ&

Naturs and purposa of reserve; Shara optons butsiandng account i crented as requued by Ind AS 102 ‘Share Based Feymants oh the Empioyes Stock Opton Scherie opavaied by the Company 1or employses

74.8 Shares application money pending alctment

Particulars As st March 31, 2022 As at March 19, 2021

Batance gy at the begnning of the yeasr 292 -

Add Shares applicabon mansy pendng sllatmant pursuant 1o £50P - 292

Lass Skares sldatment pursusnt fo schema of SMAIRSMALEN (292) .

Balance ¢ at the end of the year - FET]
nim

Nsture and purpose of reserve: This represents anares pandng allotment pursuknt to ESOP scheme

24.9 Equity investment through OC)

Particulars Ag st March 1. 2022 Aa af March 9. 2011

snce 25 01 the begnnmg of the year T2 -

Add Farvaluation through O e 612 874

Add Taxwmpact - (168} 12 48)

Balance as xi ihe ¢d of ihe year " 1232 739

sccumutaied i the FYOLH aguty nvestmen’

L T a3 sleciad 10 fecognma ChENgEs n ha far valus of certan 0 #qudy o Gthes P ncome Thase Changes oo
retarve The Com 4 Fetanve (0 retaned sarnings when the felevant #quiy securtns ace deracognnet
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SB| Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial siatements
(Figure In Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

25. Interest Income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
At Amortised Cost
Interest on loans 4,621.20 4927 &7
Interest income from investments 4352 1233
Inlerest on deposits with banks 1.31 G 65
Total 4,866.03 4,946.65
26, Feas and commission Income

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 34, 2021
Interchange income 2,557 89 1.712.20
Fee based income 187051 1491 B3
Mermnbership lees 798.16 703.78
Totat 5.226.56 3,907.67
27. Net gain / {loss) on fair value changes
Particula For the year ended For the year ended

Lt March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Net gain/loss on financlal Instruments at falr value through profit or loss
(i) Cn trading portfolio - -
(i) On financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss {0 10) 053
Total (0.10) 0.53
Fair value changes:
-Realised (0.10) 043
-Unrealised - 0.10
Total {0.10) 0.53
28, Other income

For the year ended For tho year ended
Rasticulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Bad debts recovered 50305 397.94
Net gain on fereign currency transactions am &
Profit on sale of Investment 0.40 0.18
Reversal of iImpaiment loss 108 41 .
Liabilities/Provisions written back 075 887
Interest Income -income tax & GST tax refund 1.22 393
Miscellaneous income 7.41 .20
Total 624.25 41712
29. Finance costs

Far the year ended For the year ended
Fartculars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{A) At Amortised cost
Interest on borrowings 51009 47520
Interest on debt securities 306 47 a79.52
Interest on sub-ordinated liabrities 106 90 108.71
Interest on lease liability 2287 1405
Total (A) 1,026.33 §77.48
(B} Financial intruments designated as hedging Instruments
Cost of Hedging 099 65.92
Total (B) 0.99 6592
Total { A+B § 1,027,32 1,043.40

T | OLF Cyber City,
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5SB! Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

(Figure In Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

30. Impairment on financial instruments

For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2022
On loans 225501 263820
©On Others
- financial assets 0.83 035
Total 2,255.84 2,638.55
For the year ended For the year ended
il L March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Bad debt written-off 2811326 2,158.54
Impaimment loss for other assets 083 035
Impairment loss for Loans [Stage 1,2 and 3 assets] (556 25} 478.66
2,255.84 2,638.55

Total

31, Employee benefits expenses

For the year anded

For tha year ended

Partlculars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and wages 41306 42685
Contnibution to provident fund and other funds 27 96 2785
Share Based Payments to employees 2279 3018
Staffl welfare expenses 6880 690
Total 472.71 491.58
32. Depreciation, amortisation and Impalrment

For the year ended For the year ended
Farticulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 27.33 008
Amortisation on intangible assets £698 3589
Depreciation on right to use assets 6425 5728
Total 148.56 1231.26

Left blank intentionally
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure In Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

33. Operating and other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Faor the year ended
March 31, 2021

Consumption of plastic cards & embossing 4491 A 17
Short-term lease expense 39.27 199
Variable lease expenses 134 83 14095
Travelling and conveyance 788 3.08
Telephone, fax and postage 5478 5139
Card transaciion charges 476 02 356 70
Advertisement 122 58 87 30
Directors fees. allowances and expenses 117 1.03
Sales Promolion 1.728.22 138286
Insurance expense 16 21 19.24
Professional & Consulting fees 15979 13349
Rales and taxes 39.25 1nn
Collection charges 27174 5773
Repairs and maintenance 25.27 26.27
Auditor's remuneration (refer note 39) 0.48 049
Power and fuel 526 443
Printing, stationery and office supplies 2208 47.86
Royalty Expenses 232 19 69
Reward points redempticn 62263 40510
Surcharge Waiver to Customer 5331 3542
Corporaie social responsibility expenditure* 3755 3207
Data processing charges 30272 224 45
Net loss on foreign cumency transactions s 292
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 063 018
Other Expenses 161 0.36

4,200.49 1,424.88

Total

Left blank intentlonally
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* Corporate social responsibliity expenditure

'Pursuant 1o section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company is required to spend Rs. 37 55 Crore during the Financial Year 2021-22 calculated as per Section 198 of the

Companies Act 2013
Deatalls of enpendite Incurred Is as below !

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 34, 2021
CSR Expenses 37.55 3207
Total 37.5% 32.07
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

{a) amount required to be spent by the company during the year,
(b) amcunt of expenditure incurred. * [Refer below details)

{¢) shortfall at the end of the year

(d) lotal of previous years shortfall,

{#&) reason for shortfall,

{f) nature of CSR activities,

() details of related party transactions, e g., contribution 1o a trust cantrolied by the company in relation 1o CSR
expendilure as per relevant Accounting Standard,

(h) where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contraciual obligation, the
movements in the provision during the year should be shown separalely

* Detalls of expenditure

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

3I7 55

3755

Nl

Nil

NA

Disaster relief, Skill
development, Education,
heatthcare, £nvironment

Nil

0.10

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

3207
3207
N
Nit
NA

Disaster relief, Child care, Skill

development, Education,
Healthcare. Emvironment

Nil

Nit

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Amount disbursed and utifized

Amount spent over and above disbursed amount - deposited to unspent account
Amount disbursed but unutilized - deposited to unspent account

Amaunt neither disbursed nor ulilized - deposited to unspent account

Total

Left blank intentlanally
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34, Tax expanse

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the yearended
March 31, 2021

Current tax
Current tax charge
tn respect of prior year

Deferred tax

Deffered tax charge

tn respect of prior year

Total income tax expense recognised in the current pericd

The income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars

39992 474 25
{17.04) {1077)
382.88 463.48
]
156 10 (134.03)
17.04 976
173.14 (124.27)
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Profit before tax from continuing operalions

Income tax expense calculated at 25.168%
Corporate social responsibility / Others

Total

Adjustments recognised in the curent year in relation to the current tax / deHered tax of prior years

Income tax axpensa recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

217218 132372
546 69 33318
933 7.06
556.02 340.22
— ] e
- {1.01)
556.02 339.21
o
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Cutvont tax

Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of defined benefil obligation

Total curmant tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Bifurcation of the income tax recagnised in other comprehensive income into -
Itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total

Deferred tax

Agising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive incoma
Remeasurament of defined benefit obligation
Gain/{loss) on Investment in Equity
Remeasurement of fair value of derivalive

Total deferred tax recognised in other comprehenaive Income

Bifurcation of tha income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into -

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Itams that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Total

Left blank Intentionally
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35. Earnings/ {loss) per equity share

For the year endecj For the year ended

——— March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

a |Net Profit After Tax 1,616.14 984 52

b [Weighted average of number of equity shares used in corpuling basic per share (in Crores) 9419 9397

¢ |Effect of dilusion; Employee stock eptions {in Crore] 074 0.88
Weighted average of number of equity shares used in computing diluted eamings per share (in

d 9493 94 86

Crores) (b+c)
e |Basic eaming per share - Rs. (afh) 17.16 1048
17.02 10.38

—

Diluted eaming per share - Rs. (a/d}

a6, Revenue from Contracts with Customers in line with Ind AS 115.

The Company derives revenue from a variety of services contracts with customers which are governed
by Ind AS 115 such as interchange income, membership fee, business development incentive income
and other fees such as ATM fees, late payment etc. Below table shows the revenue from contracts with

customers.
Revenue from Services For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fees and commission income 5.226.56 3,907.67
Sale of services 132.19 134.18
Business development incentive income| 447.61 299.18
Insurance commission income 4.88 8.25
ITotal Revenue 5,811.24 4,349.28

The Company's accounting policies for its revenue streams are disclosed in detail under Note 4 above
and is generated in India.

For Critical accounting estimates, refer note 4 16 to the financial statements.

Disaggregation of Revenue

Disaggregation of revenue is not required as the Company’s primary business is to provide credit card
facility and interest on loans which is governed by Ind AS 109

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The Company applies practical expedient in Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about
remaining performance obligations wherein the Company has a right to consideration from customer in
an amount that directly corresponds with the value to the customer of entity's performance till date.

The Company's remaining performance periods for its incentive arrangements with network partners
contracts with customers for its payment network services are typically long-term in nature (typically
ranging from 3-5 years). Consideration is variable based upon the number of transactions processed
and volume activity on the cards. At March 31, 2022, the estimated aggregate consideration allocated
to unsatisfied performance obligations for these other value-added services is Rs 118.26 Crores which
is expected to be recognised through financial year 2023 and later, (previous period was Rs 85.36

Crores)

Receivables from contracts with customers and contract balances
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Conlract assets are presented net of impairment in note 11 of the Balance sheet.

The below table discloses balances in receivables and Contract asset

Particulars As at March 31, 2022]As at March 31, 2021]
Trade Receivable * 168 47 8152
Contract asset ** 187.89 16531
Total-Gross 356.36 246,83
|To be realised within 12 months from reporting dat 23810 161 47
To be realised after 12 months from reporting date] 118.26 8536

* Refer note 8 to the financial statement

** Refer note 11 to the financial statement

The Company might satisfy a performance obligation before it receives the consideration in which case
the Company recognises a contract asset or receivable, depending on whether something other than
the passage of time is required before the consideration is due

Contract Assets

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's right to consideration for work completed but not
billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to receivables when the right become
unconditional. Below table shows the movement.

Particulars As at March 31, 2022|As at March 31, 2021]
Opening balance 165 31 162.42
Movement during the year 22,58 289
Closing balance 187.89 165.31
To be realised within 12 manths from reporting date 89.63 7995
To be realised after 12 months from reporting date 11826 B85 36
Contract costs

The contract cost primarily relates to:

s Cost of acquiring a customer is the incremental cost of obtaining contract with customer, which
is recognised in the profit and loss statement over the behavioural life of the customer.

o Sales promotion expenses which are directly related to selling card membership to new
customers. This cost is deferred over the membership period consisting of 12 months.

Particulars As at March 31, 2022|As at March 31, 2021

Opening balance 666.26 752.21

Capitalised during the year 1,139.69 32112
Amortised during the year {1,051.23) (407.07)
Closing balance * 754.72 566.26
To be realised within 12 months from reporting dat 135.28 83.22
To be realised after 12 months from reporting dal91 619.44 583 04

* The unamortised coniract costs are disclosed in note 15 to financial statements.
Contract liabilities - Revenue received in advance

The Company sells credit card memberships to card holders, income earned from the provision of
membership services is recognised as revenue over the membership period consisting of 12 months at
fair value of the consideration net of expected reversals/ cancellations
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Particulars iAs at March 31, 2022| As at March 31, 2021
Opening balance 365.84 33243
Received during the year 886.58 749 65
Recognised during the year {811.27) (716 24)|
Closing balance * 441.16 365.84
To be realised within 12 months from reporting dat 441.16 365 84
To be realised after 12 months from reporting dale] - -

* Contracl liabilities are disclosed in note 22 to financial statlements

37. Capital Management

Capital risk is the risk that the Company has insufficient capital resources to meet the minimum
regulatory requirements to support its credit rating and to support its growth and strategic options. The
Company's capital plans are deployed with the objective of maintaining capital that is adequate in
quantity and quality to support the Company's risk profile, regulatory and business needs
Management/Asset Liability Management Committee {ALCO] is responsible for ensuring the effective
management of capital risk. Capital risk is measured and monitored using limits set out in in relation to
the capital and leverage, all of which are calculated in accordance with relevant regulatory

reguirements.
(A) Regulated capital:
Tier 1 capital consists of Equity share capital, Reserve & Surplus (netted off Intangibles).

Tier 2 capital consists of Provision for Standard Assets & Subordinated debts as per RBI Prudential
norms for NBFCs.

Details of Tier 1 capital are as follows:

IParticulars As at March 31,2022]  As at March 31, 2021
{Tier | Capital 6,633.56 5,130.36

Details of Tier 2 capital are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Tier Il Capital §84.38 957 45

As contained in RBI Master Directions - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (hereinafter
referred to as “RBI Master Directions™, the Company is required to maintain a capital ratio consisting of
Tier | and Tier Il capital not less than 15 % of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-balance sheet and
of risk adjusted value of off- balance sheet items. Qut of this, Tier | capital shall not be less than 10%,
The Board of Director's regularly monitors the maintenance of prescribed levels of Capital Risk

Adjusted Ratio (CRARY).

DLF Cyber City,
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

(B) Key capital ratios:

Capital Risk Adjusted Ratio {CRAR} maintained and monitored by Company is as under:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
CRAR - Tier | Capital 21.03% 20 86%
CRAR - Tier Il Capital 2.80% 389%
Total CRAR 23 83% 24.75%

The Company makes all efforts to comply with the above requirements Further, the Company has
complied with all externally imposed capital requirements and internal and external stress testing
requirements

The Board of Directors approved the Dividend distribution policy which is in line with the regulatory
requirement and guidelines as prescribed by RBI from time to time. The policy focuses on the internal
and external factors (which includes long term growth plan, cash flow position, auditors’ qualification,
supervisory findings of RBI on divergence in classification and provisioning in Stage 3 assets, prevalent
economic conditions and market practices etc) which the Board shall consider before declaring the
dividend.

{c) Interim dividend on equity shares declared.
During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Board of Direclors have declared interim dividend of 25%

(Rs 2.50 per equity share of the face value of Rs 10.00) for the financial year 2021-22 in accordance
with Section 123(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended. (March 31, 2021 - NIL)
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38, Financial Instruments
Financial instruments by category and fair value measurements

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2022 were as follows

Finaneial assets! Finanelal Finanelal
liabilitles at fair valus  assetsAlabilities at fair assetsliabiities
Particulars Amortised cost thmugh profitorloss  valus through OCI Designated as Tmlv:l‘::““ Total falr valye
Eauty i hedging
Designated upon initial designatad upon inial instr
meognition
recognition

Assets;
Cash and cash aquivalents (Reler Note 5) 758.16 . . . 75818 58,48
Bank Balance other than {a} above (Reler Nota 6) 48.23 - . s 348 23 4811
Danvaiive Asset (Refer Note 7) . -
Trade Receivables {Retar Nota 8) 16847 16847 16847
Loans (Rafer Note 9} 20.187.25 . - 30187.25 29,893 00
trvasiments {Refer Note 10} 127927 . 1792 1,297 19 1,291 45
Ciher Financial assals (Rafer Note 11)

Coniracl Assels 187.89 . - - 18789 17254

Sacunty deposds 2487 : . - 487 2012

Others 0.56 - - - 056 o5
Total 12.954.70 - 17.92 - 3287282 32.662.73
i —— ]
Liablitties:
Trade payables (Refer Note 18) 1,116.80 - - s 1.115 80 1,118 80
Other payabias (Refer Nate 18) 1087 . . - 1087 1087
Debt Secunties (Refar Note 17} T.108 34 - . ) 1,106 34 712095
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securhes)(Refer Note 18) 14 680.10 - . . 1466010 14,662 47
Subordnated Liatxlties (Refer Note 19) 119602 . E - 196 02 1,251.26
Ciner financial liaildies (Refer Note 20

Payable lo Network Pariners 684 54 . B 684 54 684 54

Excess amoun| from Card holders 35512 - ! - 35612 18512

Unpad dividends 21100 - . - 21300 Fablci]

Loase Babiity 302 45 - . . 302 45 0245

Cthers 1758 . + - 1758 1758
Total 26,882.82 - . . 2668262 25,736.04
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The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2021 were as follows.

Financial asseis/ Financlal Firanelsl
Habilities at fair valus  assetsfiabliities atfalr assetaflablities
Partlculars Amortised cost throughprofitorioss  valus through OCI Dasignated as Toulv:l::rylng Total fair vatus
Equity instruments hadging
Designated upon inltial Instruments
designated upon inilal
necognition
racognition

Assels!
Cash and cash equivatants (Refar Mote 5) 843.20 . - E 54120 643 20
Bank Balancs olher than (&) above {Refer Note 6) 76.90 - . - 1690 76 90
Darvalive Asset {Refer Note 7) - ot . 010 (11}
Trade Recewabies (Refer Nota 8) 8152 8152 8152
Loans (Reter Nole §) 2345914 - - - 2345914 231%0
Invesiments {Refer Nota 10) 946.38 - 120 - G957 56 952 44
Olner Financial assets (Reler Nole 11)

Coniract Assets t65.21 - k| 154 T3

Secury deposis 2181 - - - et 2450

Others 19% - - = 185 135
Total 26.401.89 0.10 11.20 . 25.413.2¢ 25,050.84

— P

Llabilties:
Trade payables (Reler Note 16) 83138 . . - 88128 80138
Other payablas (Refer Note 16) 1134 . . - 0 nu
Debt Securtias {Refer Note 17} 593293 - . = 593293 598344
Barrowings (Olher than Debt Securties) (Refar Nole 18} 10,663 52 . + . 10,663 52 10662 52
Subordingled Liabiktias (Reler Nole 19) 1,208.33 . . . 124823 137542
Cthar financial iabibktes (Reler Note 20)

Payabla to Network Partnars 46472 . . - 48472 464 72

Excess amounl irom Card holders 22854 . . . 228 54 22854

Unpaid dindands oor . g . 0.07 oar

Lease Eability 173.28 ' . . 17328 17326

Others 951 - . - g 51 951
Total 19,863.80 - . - 19,663.60 19.791.20
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Hierarchy of Fair value measurements

Level 1 - Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).

A. The Company's financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis
[ﬁnantcal Asset/ Fair value as at Fair Value Valuation technigque(s} and key

[Finanical Liabilitias) As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 Hiararchy input(s)

Foreign cumency forward Future cash flows are estimated based
|contracts not designated in on forward exchange rates from
{hedge accounting observable forward exchange rate at the

relationships { Refer foreign 0100 Level2 |end of the reporting period) and

currency risk management contract forward rales. discounted at a
related disclosures given rate (hat reflects the credit risk of
below) various counterparties

Investments in equity 17,92 11.20

instruments at FVTOCI *

3.2% equity investment in
Onfine PSB Leans Ltd
{formerly known as
Capitaworid platform Private
Limited). Company is a
fintech startup engaged in the

3.5% equity investiment in)

Online PSB Loans Ltd)
{formerly known as|
Capilaworld platform Private|
Limited). Company is a fintech
startup engaged in the

busi of providing Smart &| busi of providing Smart &
Digital lending platform and|  Digital lending platform and
market place markel place

Level 3

Equity valualion is updated as per lalest
valuation report. The Company has
evalualed and has not chserved any
material variation in business
performance 1ill date.

*These investments in equily instruments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for medium or long-term

siralegic purpose. Upon the application of Ind AS 108, the Company has chosen lo designale these invesiments in

equity instrumenls as at FVTOCI, instead of reflecting changes in fair value immediately in profit or loss

B. The Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value:

The Company's financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value as on March 31, 2022,

are:
Fair value measurement at enid of the reporting

Particulars Carrying value  Fair value Level 4 Luval 2 Lavel 3
Assets:
Loans 30,187.25 29,893 00 . 29,893.00
Invesiments 1,279.27 1,27353 127353 0.0
Other Financial assets

Conlract Assets 187.89 17254 172 54

Security deposits 24.87 20.32 - - 2032
Total 31,679.28 31,359.39 1,273.53 - :mluus.as
Liabilities:
Debt Securities 7,108.34 7.12095 481961 2,301 34
Borrowings (Olher than Debt Securities) 14.680,10 14,662.47 . 14,6682 47
Subordinated Liabilities 1.196.02 $.251.26 387.83 £63.44
Total 221982.45 23l034.58 5'207.43 - 17,827.25
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Fair value of the Company's financial assets and ligbilities that are not measured at fair value as on
March 31, 2021 are:

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting

Particulars Carrying value  Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:
Loans 2345914 23 156 01 - - 23,156 01
[nvestments 946 36 94124 241 24 - 000
Cther Financial assets
Contract Assels 165. 31 154.23 - - 154 23
Security deposits 2761 24 50 - - 24.50
Total 24.598.42 24,275.97 941.24 - 23,334.74
Liabilities:
Debt Securities 593293 598344 3,585 51 . 239793
Subordinated Liabilities 1,298 33 1,375.42 399.67 - 975.76
Total 7,231.26 7,358.86 3,985.17 - 3,373.69

Except as detailed in the table above, the management consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values

C. Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Unlisted shares Irrevocably  Unlisted shares irrevocably
Particulars as at FVTOC! as at FVTOCI
as at March 31, 2022 as at March 31, 2021
Opening balance 11.20 1.46
Total gains or losses:
in profit or loss . -

in other comprehensive income 6.72 9.74
Purchases/lssues/Acquisitions - -
Disposals/ settiements - -
Transfers out of level 3 - -
Closing balance 17.92 1.20

38.1. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company has exposure to the following types of risks from financial instruments:

+ Market risks;
e Creditrisk; and
« Liquidity risk;

The Company's Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Risk Management Committee manages the risk
management framework and appetite. The Board of Directors has established the Enterprise Risk
Management Committee (ERMC) which is responsible for approving and monitoring Company's risk
management framework. The risk management policies, processes and tools are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

38.1.1. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, to fair values or to future cash flows that may result
from a change in variables such as changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and
other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.

The Company uses a wide range of qualitative and quantitative tools to manage and monitor various
types of market risks it is exposed to. Quantitative analysis such as net income sensitivities, stress tests
etc. are used to monitor and manage company’s market risk appetite.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
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A. Interest risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair value of financial
instruments because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company has fixed as well as floating rate loans. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on
Loans as well as repricing risk at the time of re-borrowing. The below table shows the interest rate
sensilivity for a pericd up to one year.

Description As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
Assets 9,048.25 6,406.66
Liabilities 17,127.50 13,267.12
Variation {8,079.25) {6,860.46)

interest rate sensitivity analysis

50-basis point [bps) increase or decrease is management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. The below table presents the impact on Profit / (Loss) before tax for 50 basis
point increase or decrease in interest rate on Company’s short-term interest rates liabilities and assets
which are open to repricing risk (assuming all other variables are held constant):

As at March 31, 2022

Increase Decrease
(40.40) 40.40

As at March 31, 2021 ]
Increase Decrease

(34.30) 34.30

Decription

50 bps Impact on profit

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the amount outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50-basis point increase or decrease represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. The Company's
sensitivity to interest rate has increased on a year-to-year basis primarily due to business growth and
correspondingly increase in borrowings.

B. Foreign Currency risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument,
denominated in currency other than functional currency, will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk mainly on its borrowings
denominated in foreign currency resulting in exposures to foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

The carrying amount of company's foreign currency asset and liability are as follows

Liabiities Assels
L s atMarch 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 2022 | As at Warch 31, 2021
Cihers 8257 6273 7552 731
Total 8257 273 7552 7341
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Eoreign currency sensitivity analysis:

The below table presents the impact on profit or loss [+ Gain / (-} Loss] before tax for 5% change in
foreign currency exchange rate against INR:

Forelgn currency sensitivity

analysis Impact {(Net basis})
Currency depreciating by 5% {0.35) 0.52
Currency Appreciating by 5% 0.35 (0.52)

As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominaled monetary items and
adjusts their translation for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. Sensitivity analysis given above is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting
periods does not reflect the exposure during the years.

Foreign currency risk monitoring and management

The Company's currency risk management policy lays down the appropriate systems and controls to
identify, measure and monitors, the currency risk for reporting to the management. Parameters like
hedging ratio, un- hedged exposure, mark-to market position, exposure limit with banks etc. are
continuously monitored as a part of currency risk management. Exchange rate exposures are managed
within approved parameters using forward foreign exchange contracts. Foreign currency exposure
under borrowings is fully hedged at the time of taking the loan itself.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency forward contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for
these contracts is a bank. As on reporting date March 31, 2022, and March 31,2021, company do not
have any foreign currency borrowing outstanding.

Contracts included in hedge relationship

During the year Company has designated certain foreign exchange forward contracts as cash flow
hedges the movement in spot rates to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposure on underlying
foreign currency exposures. Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge
relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic
relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument, including whether the hedging
instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged items. If the hedge ratio for risk
management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective remains unchanged and
the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting and any hedge ineffectiveness is calcutated and
accounted for in the statement of profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.

As on March 31, 2022, the Company does not have any outstanding contract which was designated
under Hedge relationship (March 31, 2021 - NIL)

Contracts not designated under hedae relationship

Cash flow hedging Action Currency Amount | Exchange rate = ﬂ;:;r:h R ;;Th ,

Finacial Asset [ 6 Months-12 menths) Sel usb $0.35) 73.50 . 2573
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Unhedged Position of the Company is as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Currency Amount Currency Amount

Finacial Liability $1.09 82.57 50 85 6273

Finacial Asset 51.00 7552 $064 47.38

38.1.2. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising out of customer’s failing to meet their contractual
obligations to the Company.

The Company has a board approved Credit Risk policy. The Chief Risk Officer (CRO) owns the policy

Credit risk arises mainly from loans and advances to retail and corporate customers arising on account
of facilitating credit card loans to customers. The Company also has exposure to credit risk arising from
other financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets including fixed deposits
with banks, other receivables from contracts with customers and contract assets etc,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with
banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit
rating agencies.

A. Credit risk management approach

Managing credit risk is the most important part of total risk management exercise. The CRO of the
Company is responsible for the key policies and processes for managing credit risk, which include
formulating credit policies and risk rating frameworks. guiding the Company's appetite for credit risk
exposures, undertaking independent reviews and objective assessment of credit risk, and monitonng
performance and management of portfolios. The principal objectives being maintaining a strong culture
of responsible lending across the Company, and robust risk policies and control frameworks,
implementing and continually re-evaluating our risk appetite and ensuring there is adequate monitoring
of credit risks, their costs and their mitigation.

The basic credit risk management would cover two key areas, viz., (a} customer selection & (b)
customer management. These are governed by Board Approved Credit Policy and Collections Policy
which is reviewed on a regular basis.

{a) Customer Selection

Key criterion for customer selection is in accordance with Board Approved Credit Policy, which defines,
inter alia, type of customers, category, market segment, income criterion, KYC requirement,
documentation etc. The Policy also spells out details of credit appraisal process, delegation structure.
The customer selection process aims to ensure quality portfolio and lower delinquency.

(I} Retail Customer Selection process

All the fulfilled approved applications undergo a number of checks which include

internal deduplication checks,

fraud deduplication check

scrutiny of KYC and income documents

Sophisticated Maching Learning (ML) application models
Bureau checks etc

For Credit limit is assigned basis ML models to estimate the debt and income of a customer

53

DLF Cyber City,
Guryaon
122002




SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

() Unsecured Corporate customer selection process

e For all unsecured corporate card exposures, SBl Cards conducts a detaled subjective
assessment based on information taken from the corporate, bureau reports, third party credit
assessment agencies like rating agencies and any publicly available information.

« To accurately assess the credit profile of a corporate, SBI Cards assesses the detailed
financials, stock price performance (if listed) trends over the recent past The critical
parameters are collated as a credit proposal and approval is done by the credit commitiee.

e In general, we evaluate the business risks associated with the corporate and its industry, its
financial profile, liquidity situation and financial flexibility. A peer comparison is also made
between the corporate and other reputed companies from the same industry

{I) Secured Corporate customer selection process

SBl Cards allows exposure io corporates against liquid securities {eg. Fixed Deposit & Bank
Guarantee). For all secured corporate card exposures, SBI Cards checks the bureau reports and a
slightly shorter proposal is put before the approving authority (as per the delegation authority approved
by the Board of Directors). The security is validated before any cards are issued.

(b) Customer Management

Customer management relates to credit controls once a card is issued, broadly consisting of:

i.

iii.

iv.

Portfolio Monitoring

We perform continuous monitoring of the portfolio leveraging various capabilities
including ML based behavior scores, bureau refresh, bureau alerts, payment behavior,
transaction trends, and pericdic update on income estimation

Portfclio management

Partiolio management activities enable us to grow lower risk exposures while
restricting high risk. We have robust capabilities around dynamic limit management,
cross-sell of term loans, balance transfers. Account management capabilities including
a robust blocking strategy, reinstatements, dispute management, and overlimit
strategies

Fraud control

Continuous monitoring of transactions and a risk-based approach is leveraged to
identify instances of fraud like account takeover, unauthorized access. ML models are
leveraged %o identify potential frauds and proactively protect against the same

Collection strategy

Customers who fail to pay their dues by the stipulated payment due dates, at various
stages of delinquency come under the purview of collection and recovery strategies
The company has developed ML models to priaritize collection efforts and also guide
the intensity of efforts across delinquency buckets. Hardship tools are leveraged to
help resolve cases including settlements and restructuring. Post write-off, ML based
segmentation is leveraged to prioritize efforts. For secured cards, liens on FDs / BGs
are invoked
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B. Credit risk analysis

This section analyses Company's credit risk split as follows,
{a) Exposure to credit risk - Analysis of overall exposure to credit risk before and after ¢redit risk
mitigation.
{b) Credit quality analysis - Analysis of overail loan porifolio by credit quality.
{c) Impairment - Analysis of non-performing / impaired loans.
{d) Credit risk mitigation - Analysis of collaterals held by client segment and collateral type.

{a) Exposure to credit risk

Maximum exposure to credit risk before and after credit risk mitigation {explained in detail in point (D))

is given below;

Particulars As at March 31, 2022| | As at March 31, 2021
Cash and bank balances 1,106.3¢ 720.10
Derivative Financial Instruments - 0.10
Trade Receivables 168 47 81.52
Loans 30,187.25 23,459.14
Investment 1,297.19 957.56
Other Financial Assets 213.32 194 87
Total 32,972.62 25413.29

Loans to customer includes loans secured by lien on Fixed deposits and Bank Guarantee held with
third party banks. Secured loans account for 1.13% as at March 31, 2022, (1.35% as at March 31,
2021} of total loans.

Notes:

+ Loans to customers which accounts for 91.6% of total exposure to credit risk, as at March 31,
2022, is segregated based on risk characteristics of the population to manage credit quality and
measure impairment.

e Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in depasits
with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies.

+ Investments in Government Securities are measured at amortized cost and Investments in
unquoted instruments are valued at Fair value as on balance sheet date and effect has been
routed through Other Comprehensive Income to be in line with Ind AS guideline

s Derivalive instruments taken by the Company are from the same party (Parent company} from
whom the Company has taken the underlying loan.

Hence, default risk from counterparty is also being a financial institution with high credit rating
is limited.

+« Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables/other financial assets wherein Company uses a provision matrix to determine the
impairment loss allowance on the portfolio of receivables.

Credit concentration risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large exposure to a counterparty Credit concentration
risk may arise from a single large exposure to & counterparty or a group of connected counterparties, or
from multiple exposures across the portfolio that are closely correlated.

Large exposure concentration risk is managed through concentration limits set by a counterparty or a
group of connected counterparties based on control and economic dependence criteria

For concentrations that are material at a Company level, breaches and potential breaches are
monitored by the respective governance committees and reported to the Risk Committee and CRO
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The Company follows the prescribed Regulatory Prudential Norms:
» Single Borrower Exposure limit - 15% of net owned funds of SBI Cards & Payments Services
Ltd.
« Group Borrower Exposure limit - 25% of net owned funds of SBI Cards & Payments Services
Ltd
In addition, there is also an internal capping on the single borrower exposure at Rs 200 Cr.

Single Borrower and Group Borrower exposure as on:

. Single Borrower Group Borrower
Particulars
exposure exposure
March 31, 2022 1.36% 2.22%
March 31, 2021 1.66% 2.70%

The following tables gives credit risk / exposure concentration by client segment
Concentration by client portfolio segment

The following table sets out an analysis of risk concentration of loans to customers split by client

segment

Portfolio segment As at March 31, As at March 31, 2021
Corporate - Secured 40.60 2526
Corporate - Unsecured 59.26 40.92
Retail - Secured 299.70 29099
Retail - Unsecured 30,881.81 24,756 66
Total 31,281.37 25113.83

{b) Credit quality analysis

Credit grading
The Company classifies credit exposure basis risk characteristics into high/medium/low risk, The

Company has in place a credit risk grading model (Internal rating model) which is supplemented by
external data such as credit bureau scoring information, financials statements and payment history that
reflects its estimates of probabilities of defaulls of individual counterparties and it applies
blocks(soft’hard) on accounts based on activity pattern of the borrower

A breakdown of loans by credit quality is given below.

By Portfolio Segment

Credit risk classification/| [As at March 31,| [As at March 31,
Staging 2022 2021

Strong ( Stage 1} 27,931.49 20,720.59
Satisfactory ( Stage 2) 2.656.46 3,138.96
High Risk ( Stage 3) 693.42 1,254.28
Total 31,281.37 25,113.83

Impact of year-on-year increase is on account of portfolio growth.
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Approach followed:

Includes borrowers that have not had a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since
Stage 1 [initiat recognition or have low credit risk at the reporting date. 12-month expected credit
losses ('ECL") are recognized.

Includes borrowers that had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that does not have objective evidence of impairment. Lifetime ECL is calculated for
such borrowers, Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the card.

Stage 2

Includes borrowers that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting that.

L Lifetime ECL is calculated for such borrowers.

Credit quality by client segment

An overall breakdown of loan portfolio by client segment is provided below differentiating between
performing and non-performing loan book,

The Company segregates its credit risk exposure from loans & advances to customers as Stage 1

{Good), Stage 2 {Increased credit risk), Stage 3 {Impaired loans). The staging is done based an criteria
specified in Ind AS 109 and other qualitative faclors.

(¢) lmpairment
Collective measurement model (Retail and Corporate)
The estimation of credit exposure for risk management purposes is complex and requires the use of
models, as the exposure varies with the change in market conditions, expected cash flows and the

passage of time The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets entails further estimations as to
likelihood of defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios, collaterals and coverage ratio etc.

The Company measures credit risk using Probability of Default (PD), Exposure of Default (EAD), Loss
Given Default {LGD). Ind-AS 109 outlines a three staged model for measurement of impairment based
on changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

s A financial instrument that is not credit impaired on initial recognition is classified in 'Stage1’

» If a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) is identified the financial instrument moves to 'Stage
2,

« Ifthe financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial instrument moves to 'Stage 3' category.

The Company defines default or significant increase in credit risk (SICR) based on the following
quantitative and qualitative criteria.
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Definition of Defauit
Quantitative criteria
The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments
Qualitative criteria
The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates that the borrower is in significant

difficulty wherein a 'hard block’ is applied on accounts and is blocked for further activity on meeting the
following criteria;

J Arrangement to Pay

. Settlement

O Cardholder is deceased
0 Restructured

Further, for any borrower to be upgraded from Stage 3, the entire overdue balance on all accounts,
must be cleared.

Definition_of Significant increase in credit risk {SICR)

Quantitative criteria

The borrower is 30-90 past due on its contractual payments

Qualitative criteria

When borrowers are classified as "high risk” or when the account is tagged as " over-limit" i.e. when
borrowers are expected to/approach their credit limit it is considered as indicator of increased credit

risk.

The default definition has been applied consistently to model the PD, LGD and EAD for measurement
of ECL.

Measuring ECL- Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation technigues

ECL is measured on either a 12 month or lifetime basis depending on whether there is an increase in
SICR since initial recognition. ECL is the discounted product of PD, LGD and EAD

Estimation for retail accounts

PD
Month on month (MOM) default rates were calculated for all  vintages.
Post calculating Mom default rates, cumulative yearly PDs being calculated till lifetime.

s For Stage 1 accounts 1- year marginal PD were calculated.

s For Stage 2 accounts - Lifetime PDs were calculated

» For Stage 3 accounts a 100% PD were taken
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LGD

All discounted recoveries net of collection costs is calculated segment wise against exposures to arrive
at loss estimates. Discount rate being considered is the average yield rate across segments. LGD is
fioored at 0% and capped at 100%

EAD

Segment wise EAD is calculated using the below formula.

EAD = Balance Outstanding + CCF*{Credit Limit — Balance Qutstanding), where CCF is proportion of
unutilized credit limit which is expected to be utilized till the time of default. CCF is applicable only for
stage 1 accounts, as stage 2 and stage 3 accounts cannot utilize the unused credit limit. CCF % =
Utilisation (t+12) ~ Utilisation () i.e. change of utilization rates over next 1 year, its being floored at 0%

Segment wise PD and LGD as at March 31, 2022, rates arrived at for all stages is given below

Portfolio Segment 5D e

Stage 1 | Stage 2| Stage 3 | Stage 1| Stage 2| Stage 3
Corporate - Secured 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
Corporate - Unsecured 1.53% | 2.96% |100.00%| 55.85% | 55.85% | 55.85%
Retail - Secured 3.29% | 5.93% [100.00%)| 27.62% | 27.62% | 27.62%
Retail - Unsecured 2.29% | 6.78% 1100.00%| 64.82% | 64.82% | 64.82%

The Company revisits the inputs, assumptions used in measurement of ECL whenever there is a
significant change, at least every quarter.

+ Individual Measurement (Corporate)

The Company’s credit risk function segregates loans with specific risk characteristics based on trigger
events identified using sufficient and credible information available from internal sources
supplemented by external data

Specific reserve may be created in following scenarios: -

» Rating of the corporate is downgraded significanily.

» Public news of default or fraud by the corporate or any group company with any lender.

e Adverse reporting in bureau with respect to the corporate or promoters {overdues with other
lenders)
Adverse public information on corporate or associated group
Significant Overdues of the corporate or group companies with SBI Card or SBI.

e |f corporate exposure is backed by security, and there is a deterioration in the value of the
underlying security.

impairment allowance for these exposures are reviewed and accounted on a case by case basis
Below table states different scenarios and effect of the same on point in time provision.
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Classification| Trigger point's Provision
1Raﬁng of the corporate downgraded by 2 notches but still investment ) ) B
grade o, 1. PD determination basis external raiting
Stage 2 2 LGD wil' be as applicable for the quarter

Early waming triggers or, Overdue amount reported in bureau>INR o S !
50K (bul not NPA or 90+) ’ 3 EAD wil be point in time outstarding of the corporate

Raling of the corporate downgraded by 3 notches or curent rating

talls below g 1. PD will be 100%
Stage3  |falls below investment grade or, 2. LGD will be as applicable for the quarter
NPA with SBI Card, any other group Company > INR 1 lakh 3. EAD will be point in time outstanding of the corporate
Stage 3 Rating of corporate downgraded to C/D category or, 1. Provisioning will be 100% of point in time ouistanding
Public news of default or fraud by the corporate of the corporate

The normal ECL model for provisioning will not apply to corporates, where specific reserves are being
held.

In the event where above stated conditions show improvement and corporate no longer falls under any
of triggers for consistently 3 months, provision is restated basis Collective measurement model.

Management overlay on ECL model due to COVID-19

The current ECL model does not cater to future economic deterioration expected due to COVID-19 fall
out. Accordingly, in anticipation of the expected economic fallout, the Company has identified specific
segments prone o stress in the current situation. These have been identified on the basis of behaviour
in the last 12 months as well as the efforts required to collect on these segments. The stress segments
identified are customers who opted for RBI resolution package as per RBI circular dated August 8, 2020
and are in stage 2 or stage 3 on the reporting date. The Company has created additional management
overlay on these segments. The Company is closely monitoring its asset quality and taking suitable
actions to manage ils exposures. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

The incremental provision created as management overlay is as follows

Stage Management Overlay
Stage 1 -

Stage 2 46.82
Stage 3 3.74
Total 50.56
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Below table shows staqe wise portfolio gross exposure and lgss allowance on Loans

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Partfolio Segment : .

b Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Staga 2 Stage 3
Corporate - Secured 40 55 005 - 2204 322 -
Corporate - Unsecured 581 015 . 40 82 0.10 -
Retail - Secured 29137 8647 186 278 34 6.77 588
Retail - Unsecurad 27.540.46 2.649.79 691,56 20,379.38 312887 | 1.24840
Gross Exposure 27,931.4% 2,656.46 693.42 20,720.5% 3,138.96 | 1,254.28
|Less - impairment loss | | 455.91 | 185.69 | 452,52 | | 331.71 | 34635 97663 |
|Carrying Amount | [___27.475.58 | 2.470.77 | 2a0.90 | [ 20,388.88 [ 2.792.61]  277.66|

Below table shows the breakup of Impairment loss provision

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 1, 2021
Podtioiic)Seament Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Corporate - Secured - - - - - -
Corporate - Unsecured 050 - . D22 - -
Retail - Secured 265 o1 0.51 0.90 005 054
Retail - Unsecured * 452.76 185 58 452.01 330.58 346.30 976.09
Total impairment logs 456.91 185.69 452.52 331.711 346.35 §976.63

* impairment loss provision of Stage 1 is calculated as PD * LGD * EAD, where EAD comprises of Balance oulstanding + CCF amount. Calculation of ECL for
Retail Unsecured is as Delow

o Far the year anded March 31, 2022 For the year ended March 31, 2021
gory Balance Outstanding| CCF Amt | Total EAD |ECL Amount| | Balance Qutstanding] CCF Amt Total EAD | ECL Amount|
Retail Unsecured 27.540.46 | 2,901.31 | 30.441.77 452.76 2037930 | 1.607 27 | 21,986.60 330.59

CCF amount for other portfolio is NIL for both the years
As of March 31, 2022, there is NIL specific loss provision for Corporate unsecured customers (NIL as of March 31, 2021)
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ECL % as per collective measurement model

ECL percentage As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

|Segment wise exposure Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Corporate - Secured 0.00% 000% 000% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Corporate - Unsecured 085% 165% 55.85% 0.53% 1.67% 57.92%
Retail - Secured 0.91% 164% 27.62% 0.32% 0.75% 9 19%
|Retail - Unsecured 1.4%% 439% 64 82% 1.50% 4.05% 65 90%

ECL % including individual measurement and management overlay

ECL percentage As at March 1, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Segment wise exposure Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Corporate - Secured 0.00% 000% 0 00% 0.00% 000% 000%
Corporate - Unsecured 0.85%) 1.65% 55 85% 0.54% 1.67% 57.92%
Retail - Secured 0.91% 1.70% 27 42% 0.32% 074% 9.18%
Retail - Unsecured 1.64%) 7.00% 65 36% 1.62% 11.07% 78.19%
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Movement of Impairment loss allowance:

|Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
|impairment Loss Allowance as at March 31, 2021 331.71 346.35 976.64
Movements during the year
Addition / Reduction during the year 1465 (188 70) 1,224 60
Provision movement on account of assel sale - - {4.31)
Write-offs during the period - - {1864 92)
New Addition during the year 109 54 2804 120 52
Impalrment Loss Allowance as at March 31, 2022 455.91 185.69 452.52
|Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
|impairment Loss Allowance as at March 31, 2020 653.06 350.37 325.53
Movements during the year
Addition / Reduction during the year (392.28) (238 04) 2.009.41
Pravision movement on account of assel sale (152.93)
Write-offs during the period (1.411.23)
New Addition during the year 7093 23402 205 85
|lmpairment Loss Allowance as at March 31, 2021 3.7 346.35 976.64

{d) Movement of Impairment Loss on assets other than Loans

For the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Trade Other Financial | Other non Financial

receivabie asset assets
Opening balance 034 1.91 11374
Addition during the year - 0.83 009
Reduction during the year (0.30) (0.34) (108.41)
Closing Balance 0.04 2.39 542
For the year ended March 31, 2021

Trade Other Financial | Other non Financial

Particulars

receivable asset assets
Opening balance 0.16 369 11420
Addition during the year 024 035 -
Reduction during the year {0.16) {2.13) (0.46)
Closing Balance 0.34 1.91 113.74
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(e) Credit risk mitigation
The below table shows the cover ratio of total NPA for the portfolio segment

As at March 31, 2022

Non-Performing Retall Retait
Loans Secured Unsecured
Loans 1.86 691.56
Loss reserve (ECL) 0.51 452.01
Coverage 27.42% 65.36%

As at March 31, 2021

Non-Performing Retall Retail
Loans Secured __Unsecured
Loans 5.88 1,248 40
Loss reserve (ECL) 0.54 976.09
ICoverage 9.18% 78.19%

38.1.3. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company doesn't have sufficient financial resources to meet its
obligations as and when they fall due or will have to do so at an excessive cost. This risk arises from
the mismatches in the timing of the cash flows which is inherent in all financing operations and can
be affected by a range of company specific and market wide events. Therefore, Liquidity risk is the
risk that an entity will encounter difficuity in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

The Company has put in place an effeclive Asset Liability Management System, constituted an
Asset Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO") headed by Managing Director & CEQ of the
Company.

The Company manages its liquidity risk through a mix of strategies, including forward-locking
resource mobilization based on projected disbursements and maturing obligations. ALCO is
responsible for managing the Company's liquidity risk via a combination of policy formation, review
and governance, analysis, stress testing, limit setting and monitoring.

Company’s borrowing program is rated by CRISIL & ICRA. Short term rating is A1+ and long-term
rating is AAA/Stable by both the agencies. There has been no change in ratings from last 10 years.

The maturity pattern of items of non-derivative financial assets and liabilities at undiscounted
principal and interest cash flows are as under:
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Maturity Analysis of Non-Derivative financial assets & liabilities as at March 31, 2022

Dedsii Umtc M days | JZmonth | 23 months | 38months | B-1Zmonihs | Tysariodysars | Jyesrto S yews | Over S yemse | Total
HICH =3
[Payapies 545 Tan 53] BT 10 100 5 57360 - - . 113767
rhes + FFLo] 50358 | 1 [XEr L7 438500 456 06 - 710633
Ber! P Shan BSTUC g I XEETH 4271684 2 905 00 145000 200 44 - 493 85 - 14620 10
Supontinated katatiey 100 O - 652 2896 064 700 o - 350 00 115602
Ofnet Fmanctai Liabimes 047 34 5177 4979 148 90 3143 107 97 7150 169 491 157789
Financisl Liabilities Totsl 838388 4480 401 333299 201873 283803 515797 1,021.4% 518401 2308282
[Trnancial Resats
Cash and cash equrvalents. 65323 - 104 93 . - - - - 758 18
k bl man £3sh h e 74129 oa1 acs 014 055 147 [1er] 04 71 34823
Trade racevabies 3492 [CEr] 104 73 987 a03 - - = ic8 47
| Loars 1037t 40 4827 827 2,004 20 471933 A276 3547 a7 B 240 50 187 33
| Irvesiments B 230 11 53 D8 402 30 195 €8 21788 180 24 1792 ' 797 19
Qther Fmancial Assets 002 _3048 FEF 40 B3 330 13538 _— [] 21337
| Fingngisl Aysets Total 11 AP07 34 2.298 13 ERYFE-- 247587 40199 —1000 39400
Maturity Analysis of Non-Derivative financial assets & liabilities as at March 31, 2021
Dasctiption [ uptodideys | 1-2moath | 2.3months [ 3amonts [ 8-1Zmonths | tysortodyears | 3ysar o8 years Qvar & yeors | Total
Financial Lisbilities
| Paysbiey B9 RS £aa) 53 43 18518 499 65 - - 2 B92 72
Debt sacurbes . 41368 41843 449 84 $18 00 2788 00 750 00 - 58329
Borrowngs othad 1R8N dedd sacuries 5001 47 2910 71 170 38 B00 38 249 87 - H - 10 683 82
Suboronated katives. - | 848 2858 1133 B840 00 - 35000 129831
Cihet Financml Liabdes 497 &7 3138 1189 100 31 28 81 w078 2125 70 13 87610
Financlal Lisbiiities Total 565504 382016 2,209 87 1,864.28 180984 81118 .28 43014 19,883 61
Financial Askats
Cash ang cash squivslen!s B4t 18 202 . - - . . A £4330
Bank belance othat IMAN Cih AN CIED KUNVEIeNTS. 5 Q01 - 14 050 D33 105 5982 1896
[ Trege recenaples. ETET] FFE] O] 7] T - - N I—TE -7
Losm 728008 J 440 15 224343 i) 37 280038 3500 18 - 277 8% 23 489 14
Irvegimaents . 281 J;I 189 28168 gyt 1] 23 51 120 7
Other Fimancwl Asdets 387 2182 318 2372 13205 879 02 123 194 87
Financial Assats Total 798984 3 747.?‘_’ 227878 4129 58 3,025 80 EXIrXTY 23252' 368 T 28,413,191
Maturity Anatysie of D assnts £ llabilties :
Dascription Upita 31 days 12 month 2.1 monthe 34 months 8-12 montha 1 yamt o J years Jyasrto 5 yests | Ovar B yems Totad
As wi War
Foregn exchange iorward contract Listiithes (Assats) - . . - B . - . .
As st March 31, 2021
Foragin sxehange forwsrd contract Listilhes jAvests) - . - . 1010 B . . 40103
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39.

40.

The table above details the Company's expected maturities for its non-derivative and derivative
financial instruments drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities including
interest. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been
determined by reference to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves at the
end of the reporting period

Following is the position of company's undrawn limits as on respective year end dales.

Funding Facility |  Total Facility| Drawn | Undrawn
March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year | 20,000.00 | 14.995.31 | 5.004.69
March 31, 2021
Less than 1 year | 19.000.00 | 12.875.66 | 6,124.34

Other price risks

The Company is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. The Company's
equity investments are held for strategic rather than trading purposes.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower other comprehensive income for the year ended
March 31, 2022 would increase/decrease by Rs.1.79 Crores (for the year ended March 31, 2021
increase/decrease by Rs. 1.12 Crores) as a result of the changes in fair value of equity
investments measured at FVTOCI.

Decription As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
10% Value 1.79 -1.79 1.12 -1.12

Auditors’ remuneration {excluding GST/Service tax)

Particulars Fur the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Audn fee 030 030
Quarterly Limited Review fee 006 006
Tax audit fee 003 003
Few for other services 007 007
Reimbursement of expenses (002 002
Total .48 0.49 |

Reward Points Movement

Movement of provision for reward points redemption and legal cases in accordance with Ind AS
37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets is as under:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a. Provision at the beginning of the year 2.0 367.69

b. Net addition during the year 601.90 33321

¢. Value of points redeemed during the year (533.86) (358.79)

d. Provision at the end of the year® (at+b-c) 41014 210 ]

* Provision for reward points as at March 31, 2022 provided as per actuarial valuation, Refer note
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

41,

il

#i.

Legal Claims:

The below table provide the movement of the provision for cases filed against the Company in

the ordinary course of business.

Particulars

For the yeur ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

#. Provision at the beginning of the year 0.16 018
b Addmions ! {Reduction) made during the year [(HER3)] (0 00y
¢ Amount Paid during the year 003 002
d. Provision at the end of the vear (a+b-c} .10 016

Related party disclosures

List of parties who have controlling interest or with whom transactions have taken place during

the year.

List of related parties

Holding Entity

State Bank of India

Entity having significant influence
CA Rover Holdings

Fellow subsidiaries

SBI Capital Markets Ltd.

SBICAP Securities Ltd.

SBICAP Trustee Company Ltd.

SBICAP Ventures Ltd.

SBICAP (Singapore) Lid.

SBICAP {UK} Ltd.

SBI DFHI Ltd.

SBI Global Factors Ltd.

SEBl Infra Management Solutions Private Limited
SB! Mutual Fund Trustee Company Pvt Lid.
S8| Payment Services Pvt. Lid.

SBI Pension Funds Pvt Ltd.

$BI General Insurance Company Ltd.

SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd.

SBI-SG Global Securities Services Pvt. Ltd.
SBI Funds Management Pvt. Ltd.

SBI Funds Management (International} Private Lid.

Commercial indo Bank Llc, Moscow
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iv.

Fellow subsidiaries contd..

SBI Canada Bank

State Bank of India (California)

State Bank of India (UK) Limited

State Bank of India Servicos Limitada (Brazil)
SBI (Mauritius} Ltd.

PT Bank SBI Indeonesia

Nepal 5SB! Bank Ltd.

Nepal SBI Merchant Banking Ltd.

SBI Foundation {not for Profit Company)

SBI Card employee's gratuity fund

Key managerial personnel

Mr. Dinesh Kumar Khara, Director

Mr. Rama Mohan Rao Amara, MD and CEO (from 30th’ January'2021)
Mr. Ashwini Kumar Tewari, MD and CEO (from 01 ‘August'2020 to 27th January’2021)
Mr. Ashwini Kumar Tewari, Director (from 05th April 2021)

Mr. Hardayal Prasad, MD and CEO (till 31July’ 2020)

Mr. Nalin Negi, CFO

Ms. Payal Mittal Chhabra, Company Secretary

Mr. Sunil Kaul, Director (till 18th June 2021)

Mr. Mihir Narayan Prasad Mishra, Director (from 18th June 21)

Dr. Tejendra Mohan Bhasin, Director

Mr. Rajendra Kumar Saraf, Director

Mr. Dingsh Kumar Mehrotra, Director

Ms. Anuradha Shripad Nadkarni, Director

Mr. Shree Prakash Singh, Director (till 31 July'2020)

Mr. Devendra Kumar, Director (from 21st August 2020 till 8th June 2021)
Mr. Shriniwas Yeshwant Joshi, Director (from 04 December 2020)

Mr. Rajnish Kumar, Director (lill 6th October'2020)

Mr. Nilesh Shivji Vikamsey, Director (till 5th November 2020
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41,1, Transactions/balances outstanding with retated parties for the Year ended/as at March 31, 2022

Particulars HoldIng Entity Entity having Fellow Key Managerial
significant influence  Subsidiaries Personnel
2. Transactions during the periad Fortha year ended March 31, 2022.
Advertisement, sales promobon & Collection 1821 o
Cost allocations received® 312 - . .
Feas and Commissicn, bank charges 158.85 . - -
Commission Receved - - 0.17 -
Personnel Cost {Managenal remuneration- Salaries & other Allowances) - - . 436
Personnel Cost {Managenal remuneration- Post Employement Berifits) - . . 0.05
Personnel Cost (Managerial remuneration- Share based payments) . - - 066
Gratuty fund contribution - - 318 -
Interest Income on fixed deposil 015 . - o
Income on investnents . 001 .
finance charges 250 26 - 24 89 -
Borrowings taken 51,993.60 . - -
Barvowings repaid 49.798.90 . - .
Fixed Deposil made naz - . .
Fixed depasit matured 068 . . -
Investments made . - 125.00 .
Investments Matured - - 125.00 -
Royalty expenses 232 . . -
Loans and Advances given and other adjustments 0.50 - 2499 080
Loans and Advances Repaid 053 . 292 076
Insurance Expenses - - 1] .
Conrtibution to Other Fund 0.95 - . -
Dividend 163.16 7.29 082 001
68
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupoas Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Holding  Entity having  Fellow Key Managerial
Particulars Company significant influence Subsidarles Personnel
b. Balances Oulslandlng at Period End - As at March 31, 2022
Trade Payabies and Other liabilties 20 - 000 -
Trade receivables - - 006 -
Borrowings {oiher than debt securities) 9,398 64 - - -
Debt Securilies induding interest payable 27743 . 31989 .
Cash and Bank Balances** 33859 = . .
Loans and Advances™™ 14.30 - 177 0.06
Fixed depoesit including Interest Accrued 275 - . -
Investments . & 0.001 .
Ccnfribution lo other fund 0.08 . - -
Divdend Payable 163.16 1.29 0.82 0.01

All ransactions with the relaied parties are al Arm's fength.
*The amounts are included/ adjusted in the respective expense line tems of operating and cther expenses.

** These amounts represent cash & bank batance, book overdraft, funds in Iransit & earmarked balances as at March 31, 2022,
*** These amounts represent year-end balances outstanding as at March 31, 2022, on credit cards issued.
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5Bl Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

41.2. Transactions/balances outstanding with related parties for the Year ended/as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Holding Entity ~ Entity having signicant Fellow Subsidiaries  Key Managerlal Personnel
Influence

4 Transactions ds ! the period _ For the yazr endad March 31, 2021

Adyertsemen, sales promoton & Collechon 1336 E B

Cont alocaons racenved P11 - -

Fees and Commission, bark charges 12424 - .

Commission Aeceived . - 080 .
Personnel Cost (Managenal remunaration- Saanes § ather Alowances . . - 430
Personnel Cost | Managenial remunaration- Post Empioyement Bersfits) . . . jilec)
Personned CostManagenal remenetation Shate based payments) B B . 0%
Gratuty hwnd contnbution . - EI -
treesest (ncome on fixed depost 0% - -

Finance charges 58389 - %506

Bormawangs taken 5146148 - .

Borrowangs repaid 51,3575 . .

Fiaed Deposd mace 194 . .

Fired deposst matured 461

Royaity expenses 1969 - - -
Loans and Advances given and other agustments 051 - n 0
Lozns and Advances Repaid 051 . N 0
Insurance Expenses - . BE0 .
Conrsbuon to Other Fund 083 . 0
CSR Contrbuton LLD
|Oviceng Paic Fc] 1 il
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HoMing Company  Entity having significant Fallow Subsidiaries KXoy Managaerial P
Particutars influence
b. Balances Oummding 3t Pariod End As a2t March 3t, 3021
Tiace Payatles and Other bablbes 4573 . 081
Trade ieceables - - 016
Barmowings (other than secunty det) 81625 . .
Dett Secunties incluctng imerest payable 178850 - ngas
Cash and Bank Salances™ 9183 - - .
Loang and Advances™ 892 . 018 [i]er3
Fred depesit inctuding Imerest Accruad 254 . . .
Investments . B 000%
Conenbuson to other fund ao0a -

All transactions with the redated partes ans at Anm's length.

“The amounts &/ incuced” adjusted in the respecive expensa kne tems of operatng and other expenses.
* These amounts represent cash & bank balanoe, book overdraft funcs in transit & earmarked balances as at March 31, 2021

*“** These amounts represent year-gnd balances cutstanding a8 31 March 31, 2021 on cedt cardy issued
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Notes forming part of the Anancial statements
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42,

Share based payments
a.581 Card Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (the Plan):

On Febnsary 22. 2019, pursuant to approval by the shareholders in the Extraordinary General Meeting, the Board has been authorized to intfreduce, offer,
issue and provide share-hased incentives to eligible employees of the Company under the Plan. The maximum number of shares under the plan shall not
exceed 3% of the paid-up share capial of tha Company when the Scheme becomes effective. The Plan shall be administered by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Board working under the powers delegated by the Board Options granted under the plan shall vest based on the
achievement of defined annual performance parameters as determined by the administrator

Under the plan, two types of employee stock options are granted, performance-based options & goodwill options. During the year ended 31st March 2021,
Performance based options (Performance QOption-2) were granted on June 17,2020. During the year ended 31st March 2020, Perflormance based options
({(Perfarmance Oplion-1) were granted on September 17, 2019 and Goodwill options were granied on September 18, 2018

Performance based options shall vest with the participants in 4 tranches: = 10%, 20%, 30%, 40% at the end of year 1. 2, 3 and 4 of continuved service
respectively However, No options shall vest befora 3 months from IPQ and the vesting of aptions shall be contingent upon the Participant being employed
with the company and lew other defined annual performance parameters. The Goodwill Options shall vest upon completion of 12 months from the Grant Data
or 180 days after the date of lisling of the Shares of the Company, whichever is later
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SBI Cards and Payment Sarvices Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupeas Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1} Summary of options granted under plan:

As at March 31, 2022
Type of arrangement
Goadwlll Options Performancs Cptions-1 Performancs Options-2

Cption movemant (given on September 17, 2019} {given en June 17, 2020)

Tranche 1 | Tranche 2 | Trancha 3 | Tranche 4 | Tranche 1 | Tranche 2 | Tranche 3 | Tranche 4 Total
{Cpening balance
a) Number of Options . . 2.389.100 | 3.583 650 | 4,778,200 13.195 26.300 39.585| 52780 | 10.882.900
Avg, Exercise price per share option(in Rs.) . - 152,10 152.10 152.10 152 152 152 152 -
Vesting Period - - 2 yeas 3 year 4year| 1year 2 year 3 year 4 year -
b} Number of Options Vested but not exercised 76000 468,803 : - ‘ . i . . 644,803
[Options Grarttad during ths year
Number of Options
Avg. Exescise prica per share option(in Rs.)
Vesting Period
Options Exercised during the ysar | ]
Number of Ogtions 94 500 454,933 | 1,892,535 - - 13.195 . : - 2.455.26
[Avg Cxerase DOCS per share goboniin Rg ) 15210 152,10 152 10 - - 152 - - - 152,10
Options Forfaited during the year
Number of Cptions e
Options Expired during the year - - -
Number of Options 7.000 : : . - - . - - 7.000
Options Vested but niot sxarcised during the
jyear
Number af Opticns 74.400 13870 | 496,565 534 835
Options Outstanding at the year end
[Number of Options 1583650 | 4.778.200 . 26,390 |  39.585 52780 | 7835802
Avg. Exettise price per share optionfin Rs.) 152,10 15210 - 15210 152 14 152,10 152.10

The weighted average market price of equity shares for options exercised during the year is Rs. 1025.83
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
({Figure in Rupeas Crores, uniess otharwise stated)

As at March 31, 2029

T of arrangement
Option movemant Goodwitl Optlons Performance Qptions.1 Performance Optlons-2
{given on September 17, 2018) given on Juna 17, 2020/
Tranthe 3 | Tranche2 | T 3| Tranche 4 | Tranche 1 | Tranche 2| Tranche 3| Tranche 4 Totat
Opening balance
Number of Options 1334500 | 1,200.920 | 2.401.840 | 3.602.760 | 4.503.880 - - - = 13 343 700
Avg Exgrcise pnce par share opton{in Rs } 152.10 152.10 152.10 182,10 152 10 = - - = =
Vestng Period 1 y8ar 1 year 2 year 3 year 4 year = - = = -
Options Granied during the year ; -
Number of Options - - - - - 13.195 26.390 39.585 52780 131,950
571001 152101 35210
Avg. Exercise price per share opticn(a Rs | N - . - - EHL) EXAL (BRI LErSl. 152 10
\Vashng Penod - - B . - 1 year 2 yBar 3 ysar 4 y#ar
Options Exercised during the year
Number of Opu_&ns 1.031.500 728.932 - - - = - = - 1.760.432
Avg Exercise prce par share option{in Ra ) 15210 152.10 - - - - - - - 152.10

Opticns Forfeited during the year

Number of Options. - - - - - - - = -
Options Expirad during the year -
Numbar of Options 127.000 3,185 12.740 19.110 25480 - - - - 187 515
Cptions Vested but not exercisad during the
Vil LA -
Number of Qptigns 176.000 468.803 £44.803

Options Outstanding at the year end
Numbar of Options 2.389.100 | 35836850 | 4778.200 13.195 26.390 39 585 52.700 | 10 882.900

Avg, Exercise pnce par share optiontin Rs.) 152.10 152 10 152.10 15210 15210 15210 152 10 152 18

The welghted average market price of equity shares for options exercised during the year is Rs. 865.53
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, uniess otherwise stated)

if) Share options outstanding at the end of period have following expiry date and exercise prices.

Exercise price | Share options

Option Grant date Expiry date fin Rs.) March 31, 2022
. Tranche 3 - September 17. 2016 Seplember 2022 162.10 3,583,650

Performance OPION-1 |1 -nche 4 - Seplember 17. 2016 Seplember 2023 152.10 4778200
Tranche 2 - June 17, 2020 [16 June 2022 152.10 26,390

Performance Option-2 Tranche 3 - June 17, 2020 |16 June 2023 152.10 39,585
Tranche 4 - June 17, 2020 |16 June 2024 152.10 52.780

Total 8,480,605
Weighted average remaining contractual ife of options outstanding (In 108

years)

iify Options granted during the year ended March 31, 2022 - Nil.
Fair value at the grant date of options granted during the period ended March 31, 2021

Type of Option Tranche F?IIr: \ézll.;e
| Tranche 1 604.9
. Tranche 2 6131
Performance Option-2 Tranche 3 T
Tranche 4 628.3

The fair value of the options is determined on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model, with the following assumptions

Performance Options-2
——— Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4
Expected dividend yield 0% (% (% 0%
years fo expiration 15 45 55 8.5
Risk {ree rates 59% 6.1% 6.2% §.3%
Expected volatility 4% 33.4% 33.1%| 328%

Volatility is a measure of the amount by which a price has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate during a
pericd. The measure of volatility used in the Model is the annualized standard deviation of the
continuously compounded rates of return on the stock over a period of time which is considered as
equivalent to the life to expiration. In the instinct case, the volatility of the Company is computed based
on the average volatility of the comparable companies listed on stock exchange.

b.Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Employee option plan 22.79 30.18
Total expense 22.79 30.18
Leases

. Short Term lease payments

For the operating lease agreements entered into by the Company which are considered as short team
leases (lease term of less than 12 months period) under IND AS 116, right of use asset and lease
liability has not been recognized during the year, Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Low-
value assels comprise IT-equipment and small items of office furniture.

Gurgagn
122002
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

l. Variable lease payments
Under certain contracts, payments are variable in nature as it depends on number of man hours worked

by non-full-time employee in a particular month, Variable lease payments are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the condition that triggers those payments occurs

Maturity Analysis of lease liabilities:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Not later than one year 62.38 57.34
Later than one year and not later than five years 174.46 115.36
|Later than five years 65.61 0.56
|Total minimum lease payments 302.45 173.26

Empioyee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying
employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the
payroll costs to fund the benefits The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.

For the year enced For the year ended
LT Mareh 3, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provident Fund 1900 18.02
Employee State insurance Corporation (ESIC) 03 036
Contributicn to National Pension Scheme 078 0.89
Labour Welfare Fund 014 014
Total 20,22 19.41

Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every
employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days
salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

ot PO e
Discount rate 645% 6 30%
Future Salary Increase/Salary escalation 2.00% 9 00%
Expected return on plan assels 0.00% 0 00%
Retirement Age (years) 60 Years 80 Years
Mortality Tables* 2012 - 14 2012- 14
Employee tumover
From 21 to 30 years 33.00% 22 00%
From 31 to 40 years 26 00% 12 00%
From 41 to 50 years 15 00% 11.00%
From 51 to 59 years 500% 000%
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion & Other relevant factors, such as supply & demand in the employment market,

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality/
others

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of
profit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost are measured
using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet
date

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefits expense recagnized in the employee cost:

Particulars For the year ended]|  For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 34, 2021
Current service cost [a:1) 8.16
Past service cost - -
Interest on net defined benefit liabiiity | {asset) (0-11) 0.08
Compenents of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss* 786 824
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Changes in financial assumplions {0.53) {1.75)
Changes in demographic assumptions (5.35) (1.56)
Experience adjusiments [148) {4.24)
Retumn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 049 013
expense)
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset -
Cumponent§ of yeﬁned benefit costs/(Income) recognised in olher 689) (142)
comprehensive income

*Far the year ended March 31, 2022, contribution of Rs. 0.13 Crores has been made by trust maintained with SBI
Life insurance Company limited.

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee benefits
expense’ line item in the statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined
benefit plans is as follows ;

e
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 56.46 56.28
Fair value of plan assets {57 98) (55 47)
Net obligation status (1.52), 081
Restrictions on assel recognised

Net liabilityl{asset) arising from defined benefit obligation (152 0.81
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Movementls in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars For the yearended|  For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 56.28 5385
Current service cost 197 816
Past service cost - -
Interest cost KK 359
Remeasurement (gains)losses due to:

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial (0.53) {1.75)

assumptions

Actuanial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic {5.35) {1.56)

assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments (1.49) {424)
Benefils paid (3.79) (177
Closing defined benefit obligation 55.46 56.28
Particulars Forthe yearended|  For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening fair value of plan assets 5647 5022
Employer coniributions KKl 364
Interest on plan assels 349 351
Administration expenses - -
Remeasurement due to;

Actual retum on plan assets less interest on plan assels {049) 013)
Beneftts Paid (379) (1.7
Assels acquired/{setiled)” - -
Assels dislributed on settiements > 0
Closing defined benefit obligation 57.98 55.47

Sensitivity Analysis:

Graluity is a lump sum plan and the cost of providing these benefits is typically less sensitive to small
changes in demographic assumptions. The key actuarial assumptions to which the benefit obligation
results are particularly sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate, The following
table summarizes the change in defined benefit obligation and impact in percentage terms compared
with the reported defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period arising on account of an
increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points
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(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

For the year snded Far the year ended
I March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Riscount Rate
Impact of increase 50 bps on Defingd benefit obligatan 2 04% ~HS2
Impact of Dacraase S0 bps on Definad benefit obligation I22% 4.89%
Zalary Esclation rate
limpact of increase 50 bps on Dafined benefit obligation 312% 4 73%
Impact of Decreasa 50 bps on Defined benefit obligation -2 98% -4 43%

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation
and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. There have been
no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analyses.

Projected plan cash flow:

The lable below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current
membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

For the year ended|  For the year ended
Maturity Profile March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Expected Benefils for 1 year 979 519
Expected Benefils for 2 year 824 507
Expected Benefits for 3 year 725 487
Expected Benefits for 4 year 6.06 479
Expected Benefits for Syear 572 438
Expecied Benefits for 6 year 439 473
Expected Benefils for 7 year 438 370
Expected Benefits for 8 year 390 415
Expected Benefits for 9 year 42 400
Expected Benefits for 10 year and Above 3854 7436
welghted average duration to the payment of these cash flows 625 9.39
{in Years)
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Compensated absences

An actuarial valuation of compensated absences has been carried out by an independent actuary based
on the following assumption:

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows

Forgmre  For e
Discount rate 6.45% 6 30%
Future Salary Increase/Satary escatation 9.00% 9.00%
Retirement Age (years) 60 Years £0 Years
Mortality Tables” 201214 2012-14
Employee lumover

From 21 fo 30 years 3.00% 22.00%

From 31 to 40 years 26.00% 12.00%

From 41 1o 50 years 15.00% 11.00%

From 51 to 59 years 5.00% 0.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promotion & Other relevant factors, such as supply & demand in the employment market.

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality/
others.

Defined Benefit Obligation of compensated absence in respect of the employees of the Company are as

follows:

For the year anded For the year ended
U March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation 15.50 18 94
Closing defined benefit obligation 15.50( 15.94

Long service award

An actuarial valuation for Long Service Awards to employee has been carried out by an independent
actuary based on the following assumption

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

paricr Al B
Discount rate 6.45% 6 30%
Increase in Cost of Award 0 00% 0 00%
Retirement Age (years) 60 Years 50 Years
Mortality Tables* 201214 2012-14
Employee tumover

From 21 to 30 years 33 00% 22 00%

From 31 to 40 years 26 00% 12 00%

From 4110 50 years 15 00% 11.00%

From 51 to 59 years 500% 0 00%
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation,
seniority, promolion & Other relevant factors, such as supply & demand in the employment market.

* Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality/
others.

Defined Benefit Obligation of long service award in respect of the empioyees of the Company are as
follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Defined benefit obligation

610

883

Closing defined benefit obligation

6.10

8.83

45, Contingent liabilities and Commitments
For the year anded For the year ended
Particulars March 31, zozzl March 31, 20211
Claims againsi the Company not acknowledged as dett
{a) Demand notices from Service tax department 2603 5374
(b} Claims against the company in the ordinary course of business 24.94 19 38
(c) Guarartees B8.17 110 13
(d) Demand notice from Incoma tax departrment 1 Qab 545
(@) Contribution notice from ESIC & EPFO 7.08 7.08
| Total 8.20 195.76
Pre-doposit against claima 2.4% 2.47
i Certain show cause notices relating to indirect taxes matters amounting to Rs. 0.42 Crores (March 31,

2021 Rs. 0.42 Crores) and interest as applicable, have neither been acknowledged as claims nor
acknowledged as contingent liabilities. Based on internal assessment and discussion with tax advisors,
the Company is of the view that the possibility of any of these tax demands materializing is remote

ii. In absence of any specific entry in the Indian Stamp Act, 1899 for amalgamation, which is open to
interpretation of the stamp collector, the Company has filed an application dated June 30, 2019 for
adjudication of the stamp duty in Delhi. During the pendency of the adjudication application, it is difficult
to provide an estimate of the actual stamp duty that would be leviable on the Company and therefore no
provision has been made in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

iii. Capital Commitments: Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for (net of advances) amounted to Rs. 10,22 Crores as at March 31, 2022, (Rs. 22.07
Crores as at March 31, 2021).

46, As per the best available information on records, Company does not have any transactions with the
companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act,2013 or Section 560 of the Companies
Act, 1956 during the financial year 2021-22,

47. SEGMENT INFORMATION

There is only reportable segment ("Credit cards"”) an envisaged by Ind AS 108 Segment reporting,
specified under section 133 of the Companies act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules 2014. Further, the economic environment is which the Company operates is significantly similar
and not subject to materially different risk and rewards.
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$BI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, uniless otherwise stated)

Accordingly, as the Company operates in a single business and geographical segment, the reporting
requirement for primary and secondary disclosures prescribed by Ind AS 108 are not required to be
given.

48. In respect of accounts receivables, the Company is regularly generating and dispatching customer
statements on periodic interval wherever transactions or outslanding are there In case of disputes with
regard to billing, there is a process of resolution and adjustments are carried out on regular basis
Moreover, in respect of accounts payable, the Company has a process of receiving regular balance
confirmation from its vendors.

For the year end balances of account receivables and account payables, the management is of the
opinion that adjustments, if any required through the above-mentioned process, will not have any
material impact on the financials of the Company.

49, The Company deposited Goods and Service Tax [GST] on Interchange received by it in respect of VISA
International transactions. However, in February 2019, Company has received a declaration from VISA
that Settlement of International Interchange is being done in INR as per approval of RBI obtained by
VISA in 1995. On the basis of said declaration, the Company has obtained opinion from legal firm
confirming that the same can be treated as receipt of consideration in convertible foreign exchange and
consequently as export of service and therefore not chargeable to GST. The Company has accordingly
decided to stop paying GST on International Interchange henceforth and decided to file a refund
application for Rs. 11.06 Crores for the GST paid from July 2017 to February 2019 with GST authorities.

The said refund is subject to interpretation of law for which there is no precedence in the form of
judgements/ departmental clarifications. In view of the above, the Company has provided for 100%
provision against the refund claim to mitigate the uncertainty risk.

Further, on 16th July 2018, the Company has withdrawn refund application for Rs. 6 54 Crores for the
period April 2018 - February 2019 and have adjusted this amount from tax payable of the subsequent
period basis opinion from legal firm and accordingly provision to the extent of Rs. 6 54 Crores have
been reduced/ reversed.

50. The Company deposited GST on Interchange Income for the period April 2018 to December 2018
considering them as intra-state supplies for the year ended March 31, 2019. However, post receiving
bank wise details of such Interchange Income from network pariners, such supplies are held as Inter-
state transaction for which IGST is applicable. Consequently, company had filed a refund claim under
Section 77 of the CGST Act of Rs. 108.41 Crores which has been rejected by the adjudicating authority
as well as the first Appellate Commissioner. As GST Tribunals have not been set up as of now,
Company has filed a Writ Petition before Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana High Court against such rejection
order. The Company created 100% provision against the refund claim as at March 31, 2021 to mitigate
the uncertainty risk considering that the said refund is subject to interpretation of law in view of the
abave

The refund claim under Section 77 of the CGST Act of Rs. 108.41 crore was allowed during the year
ended March 31, 2022, and subseguently refund amount was received on January 04, 2022. In view of
the above, impairment loss against the refund claim has been reversed and effect thereof has been
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, under Other Income, during the year ended March 31,
2022

Gurgaon
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

51. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has sold a portion of Stage 3 assets to an Asset
Restructuring Company. Details of such transaction is as below,

For the year ended For the year ended
e — March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of accounts 825 31671
Aggregate value (net of provisions) of
accounts sold to ARG Rs 2.23 Crores Rs 79.88 Crores
Aggregate consideration Rs 0.52 Crores Rs 18.43 Crores
Additional consideration realized in
respect of accounts transferred in earlier | ¢ NIL NIL
years
C;;lﬁ;egate gain / (loss) over net book (Rs 1.71 Crores) (Rs 61.45 Crores)

The consideration on sales of asset [Stage 3] has been settled in cash as of March 31, 2022.
52. The Company has made following changes in estimates during the year ended March 31, 2022

i. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has triggered an early write off of loan balances
of Rs 304.73 Crores [40983 accounts) on account of change in estimation of recovery expectation of
certain calegory of retail accounts in Stage 3. There is no impact of this change in the statement of
Profit and Loss account as the same was fully provided under Expected Credit Loss {ECL] model
including management overlay.

i. The Company has classified all the linked accounts of written off accounts (having balances > 0) as
Stage 3 instead of their independent staging. This has resulted in higher Stage 3 balance by Rs 26 19
crore with a corresponding increase in ECL by Rs 15.11 crore during the quarter and year ended
March 31, 2022, in the statement of profit and loss account.

53. Analytical ratios

. For the year snded | For the year ended Raason for variance
Ratie Numsrator Denominator March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 % Variance (i above 25%
Capital to risk-weighted : . . ,
ass21s ratio [CRAR) Total capital employed Total Risk weighted asset 23 83% 20.75%) 0 92%) NA
Total equity reduced by Deflered
Tier | CRAR Tax, Infarple assets and Total Risk weighted asset 21.03%| 20.86% 017% NA
Unamortised card acquisition cost
Provision on standard asset to the
extent of 1.25% of fotal risk
Tier | CRAR weighted assel and Sub-ordnated |Tofal Risk weighted asset 280% 3B9%, -1 09% NA
debts with original maturity above 5
years
Total net cash outfiows
Liquidity Coverage Ratio [Stock of High Quality Liquid Asset [over the next 30 calender 79.06% 6155%) 17 51% NA
days
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Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

54. During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has reclassified following
comparative figures which do not have material impact on the Balance Sheet

| Note No | Nota Description | Previously reported amount| Current revised numbers | Change |
|Asset

Note No 6 |Bank batance olher than cash and cash equivalent 74 90 7690 200
Mote No B | Trade receivable 5602 8152 24 70
Note No 11|0ther financial assels 221 57 104 87 126 70)
Mole No 12|Curent tax liabilities/assets (nel) 2169 5247 nTre
Nole No 15]Other non financial assets 864 62 83384 130 78)
Totat

Liabilities

Note Mo 16|Payables 76015 gg272| 13287
Note No 18]Borrowings (cther than debt securities) 10,836 78 1066352 | (173.26)
MNote No 20]|Cther financial liabilities 702 84 87610 17326
Note No 21 |Provisions 542 22 409.65 | (13257}
Total

55, SEBI circular no SEBI/HO/DDHS/PICIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021

| SR. | PARTICULARS [ DETAILS
| NO.
|r 1 Name of the company SBt Cards and Payment Services
| Limited
[ 2 CIN - L65999DL1998PLC093849
3 Qutstanding borrowing of company as on March 31, Rs. 22,982.46
i 2022 (in Rs ¢r)
| 4 Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY AAA/Stable by CRISIL & ICRA|
| along with name of the Credit Rating Agency
|

Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be] BSE Limited
5 paid, in case of shortfzll in the required borrowing
under the framework |

DLF Cyber Cily.'
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56. SEBI circular no SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/CIR/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021

8. | Particulars Details
No.
1 |2-year block period {specify financial years] FY 2022 and FY 2023
2 | Incremental borrowing done in FY 2022 Rs 3,105.00
(a)
3 | Mandatory borrowing to be done through debt Rs 776.25

securities in FY 2022
(b) = (25% of a)

4 [ Actual borrowing done through debt securities in FY| Rs 2,6035.00
2022
{c)

S | Shortfall in the borrowing through debt securities, if] Ni]

any, for FY 2021 carried forward to FY 2022.
{d)
6 | Quantum of (d), which has been met from (c) Nil

(e)

57. Disclosure in terms of RBI Circular (RBI/2019-20/88) No: DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.
No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019.

57.1.1. Public disclosure on liquidity risk:

i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings)

st. No Quarter Number of Significant Amount % of Total | % of Total
1 ended Counterparties (Rs.crore} | deposits | Liabilities
1 Jun'21 11 {Eleven) 14,923.74 N.A. 74 64%
2 Sep'21 10 (Ten) 16,472.68 NA. 74.27%
3 Dec'2 11 (Eleven) 18,868 .57 N.A. 76.37%
4 Mar'22 09 (Nine) 20,744 .46 N.A 77.13%
e
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S$BI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

ii) Top 20 large deposits {amount in Rs. crore and % of total deposits)

Company is registered as Non-Deposit taking Systemmically Important NBFC, hence this clause s not applicable

lii} Top 10 borrowings (amount in Rs. crore and % of total borrowings)

sr. No Quarter Amount % of Total
"'l ended (Rs. crore) Borrowings
1 Jun'21 14 842.33 87.14%
2 Sep21 16.362.66 87.02%
3 Dec21 18.571.63 B9 06%,
4 Mar'22 20,789.65 91.10%
|v} Funding Concentration basad on significant Instrument/product
Bank Lines _Debentures Tarm Loan Commercial Papers
Quarter Total Total
R S o P e g e e e
1 Jun'Zl 942 83 49.73% 591135 29 58%) + . 1,332 01 £ 67%]
2 Sep 21 11.381.16 51.23% .46 80 29.14%)| - - 1,196 21 . 38%]
3 Dac21 1266t 90 _51_25'.1- .506.54 10 18% - BB1 02 3 57%)
4 Mar22 14.180.15 52.72% 487 20 27 844%) 499 95 1 B5%| 815.16 303%
v) Stock Ratios :
Quarter %of Total | % of Total | % of Total
Sr. No. ended Name of the instrument/product Public Funds | Liabilities | Assets
Commerdial Papers NA. 6.67% 5.01%
a | sz [Nomconverte debenures NA NA|  NA
{original maturity <1 year)
Other short-term liabilties NA 63.41%|  47.64%
Commercia! Papers NA 5.36% 4.10%
, Non-convertible debentures
b Sept {original maturity <1 year) b b NA
Other short-term liabilities NA. 6527%|  49.63%
Commercial Papers NA. 35t% 274%
¢ | Degzr [Nor-convertbie debenlures NA NA|  NA
(original maturity <1 year)
Other short-lerm kabilities NA 65.48% 50.39%
Commercial Papers NA 3.03% 2.35%
d | Marg [Non-convertible debenfures NA Na|  Na
{onginal maiurity <1 year)
Other short-term liabilties NA. 6652%|  51.64%

vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management
Refer note no 38.1.3 for defails
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unlass otherwise stated)

57.1.2. Disclosure on Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Reserve Bank of india, through the Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial
Companies, introduced Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) with the objective that NBFC shall maintain a
liquidity buffer in terms of LCR which will promote resilience of NBFCs to potential liquidity disruptions by
ensuring that they have sufficient High Quality Liquid Asset (HQLA) to survive any acule liquidity stress
scenario lasting for 30 days HQLA means liquid assets that can be readily sold or immediately converted
into cash at little or no loss of value or used as collateral to obtain funds in a range of stress scenarios.

Liquidity management in the Company is driven by the Board approved Asset Liability Management {ALM)
Policy. The Asset Liability Committee {ALCO) is a decision-making unil responsible for implementing the
liquidity risk management strategy of the Company, formulating the Company's funding strategies to
ensure that the funding sources are well diversified and is consistent with the operational requirements of
the Company and ensures adherence to the risk tolerance/limits set by the Board.

The LCR requirement were effective December 1, 2020, with the minimum HQLASs to be held being 50%
of the LCR. progressively increase it by 10% annually. to reach up to the required level of 100% by
December 1, 2024. From December 1, 2021, the minimum HQLASs to be held are at 60% of the LCR.

The LCR is calculated by dividing Stock of HQLA by total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar
days. Total net cash outflows over the next 30 days are equal to stressed outflows minus Minimum of
(stressed inflows or 75% of stressed outflows), wherein stressed outflows are 115% of outfiows and
stressed inflows are 75% of inflows.

The following table sets out the average of unweighted and weighted value of the LCR components of the
Company calculated in accordance with RBI circular no RBI2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC.
No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 04, 2019. The average weighted and unweighted amounts
are calculated taking simple averages of daily observations over the respective quarter.
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SBl Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended
March 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Septernber 30, 2021 June 30, 2021
Total Total Total Total Welghted Total Total Total
Unweighted Weighted Unweighted Val : tinweighted | Weighted | Total Unwelghted Weighted

Sr. Value Value Value { Aver: e} Value Value Value (Average) Value
No. Particulars [Average]) [Average) [Average) € {Average) | (Average} (Average)
High Quality Liquid Asset

Total High Quality Liquid Assets
1 [HQLA) 1,311.17 1,188.68 1,011.13 1.038.66
Cash Outflaws

Depasits (For Deposit taking
2 Companies} - - - - - - . -
3 Unsecured Wholesale Funding . - - - - - - .
4 Secured Wholesale Funding 4,279.67 4,921.62 4,218 80 4,851.62 3,433.13 ; 3,943.10 3.555.52 4,088 84

Additional Requlrements, of
5 which
0] Outflows related to derivative

exposures and other collateral

requirements - = - - - - = -
(i} Outfiows related to ‘loss of

funding on debt products . - - - - g o .
i)

Credit and liquidity facilities 440.96 507.10 421.15 484.33 393.02 451,98 173.41 199.43

Other  contractual  funding
[ obligations 1.047.72 1.204.88 1.036.93 1.192.46 948.52 | 1,000.80 866.58 996.56

Other  contingent  funding
7 obligations - - - - - - - c
8 Total Cash Outflows 5,768.34 6,633.59 5,676.88 6,528.41 4,774.68 | 5,490.88 4,595.51 5,284.83
Cash Inflows
) Secured lending - - - - - - - -

Inflows from fully performing
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10 exposures 9,610.82 7.208.11 9,077.13 6,807.85 7,381.52 5,536.14 6,895.86 5,171.89

11 Crther Cash Inflgws 142 .52 106.89 130.10 97.57 133.05 93.79 234.29 17572

12 Total Cash Inflows 9,753.34 7.315.00 9,207.23 6,905.42 7,514.58 | 5,635.93 7,130.15 5,347.62

Total Total

Total Adjusted Total Adjusted Adjusted Adjusted

Value Value Value Value

13 Total HOLA 1,311.17 1,188 63 101113 1,038 66

14 Total Net Cash Outflows 1.658.40 1.632.10 137272 132121

15 Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 79.06% 72.83% T1.58% 75.61%
90
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The main drivers of the LCR calculation in outflow over 30 days period is contractual borrowing obligations
of the company in the form of commercial papers, bank lines, debentures Other conltractual funding
obligations consist of liabilities towards network pariners, vendor payments, other liabilities. Further
company has used the behavioural study to take the impact of unused credit and liquidity facilities that
Campany has provided to its cardholders. Main driver of inflows is the repayments from the cardholders
which are taken basis the past behavioural pattern observed. Other cash inflows consist of incomes
accruals which company expects to receive in next 30 days.

The average LCR of the Company for the three months ended March 31, 2022 was 79.06% as against
72.83% for the quarter ended December 31, 2021. The LCR remains above the regulatory minimum
reguirement of 60%,

The average HALA for the quarter ended March 31, 2022 was 1,311.17 Crores as against 1,188 68
Crores for the quarier ended December 31, 2021. The net cash outflow position has gone up by Rs. 26.30
Crores and HQLA leve! has up by Rs 122.49 Crores. Increase in HQLA level has been done 1o increase
the overall LCR percentage, HQLA comprises of balances in current account with Scheduled Commercial
Banks (6.26%), Investments in Treasury Bills (63.33%) and Investment in Government Securities
(30.41%).

The company takes forward cover to hedge the foreign exchange liabilities and hence does not foresee
any material impact of derivative exposure/potential collaterat calls/ currency mismatch in the LCR

Management is of the view that the Company has sufficient liquidity cover to meet its likely future short-
term requirements.

58. Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company as required in terms of Paragraph 13
of Non- Banking Financial Companies (non-deposit accepting or holding) Prudential Norms (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016:

Particulars As at As at
Liabilities side: Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loans and advances availled by j Amount Amount

1|the NBFC's Inclusive of Int 2 ding A P— Hus
!aeeruud thereon but not paid: il

{a) Debentures ' Secured
Unsecured 7.487 20 - 501812

{Other than falling within the
reaning of public deposils}
{9) Deferred Credits E - -
{c) Term Loans 499 95 - -

{d) Inter-corporate loans and
bormowing
(8) Cemmarcial Papear 215 18 - 221214

{f) Other Loans
- External commercial

bomowings :

« Cash/Credit Loans® 1418015 - 10,663 52

- Finance lease obligation - = -

- laasa abligation 302 45 - 17328)

* It includes working capital demand loan.

—
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Amount outstanding Amount cutstanding |
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Assets side:

Break-up of Loans and Advances
2 lincluding bills receivables [other
than those included in (4}

{(a} Secured* 340.30 316.25
() Unsecured 30.941.07 24,797.58
Break up of Leased Assets and
3 |stock on hire and other assets S =
counting towards AFC activities
i) Lease assets including lease
rentals under sundry debtors

{a) Financial lease Nil Nil

(b) Operating lease Nif Nil
i)  Stock on hire including hire Nil Nil
charges under sundry debtors:

(a) Assets on hire Nit Nil

(b) Repossessed Assets Nil Nil
iy Other loans counting towards Nil Nil
AFC activities

(a) Loans where assets Nil Nil

have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than {a) Nil Nil

above

* It Includes advances to credit card customers to the extent of lien on fixed deposits and financial guarantees
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e Amount outstanding | Amount outstanding |
Assets side: As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments:
1. Quoted:
{ Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
{b) Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
{iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
{iv) Government Securities 878.31 623.25
(v} Others Nit Nil
2. Unquoted:
{i) Shares: (a) Equity Nil Nil
(b) Preference Nil Nit
{ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
{iii) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
(iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
4 |(v) Others Nil Nil
Long Term invesiments:
1. Quoted:
M Shares; (a} Equity Nil Nil
{b}) Preference Nil Nil
(i) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(iiiy’ Units of mutua) funds Nil Nil
{iv}) Government Securities 400.96 323.11
(v) Others Nil Nil
2. Unquoted:
()] Shares: (a) Equity 17.92 11.2
(b} Preference Nil Nil
(ii) Debentures and Bonds Nil Nil
(i) Units of mutual funds Nil Nil
{iv) Government Securities Nil Nil
{(v) Others Nil Nil
5 [Borrower group-wisa classification of assets Tinanced as in (2) and [3} above:
Amount nat of provisions
Category As at March 31, 2022 As at March M, 2011
Secured Linsecured Tolat Secured Unsecured Total
1 Relaled Parties
{a) Subsidiaries 5 5 g 5 5 .
{b) Companies in the same group - 07 0.27] - 0.24 024
(c) Other related paties - 008 0.06 - 0.02 002
2. Other than related parties 340 30| 30.940.74 31.281.04 314.76( 23.lm5| 23,458.89
Total 340.30] 30,841.070  24.281.37 478 20144390 2348944
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SBIl Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term} in shares and securities (both quoted
and unquoted):
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Market Value / Break up | Book Valuwe {Net of ol T FEU T
Category or fair value or NAV Provisions) L A )
fair value or | Provisions)
1. Related Parties
(2) Subsidiaries - - -
{b} Companies m the same group ° - - -
{c) Other related parties - - - -
2. Other than related parties 1.297 19 1.297.19 957 56 957 5§
Total 1,297.19 1,297.19 §57.56] 957.56/

* Refer nole 10

Other Information

As at March 31, 2022

Gross Non-Performing Assets

As at March 31, 2021

(a) Related parties - =
(b) Other than related parties 69342 1,254.28
Net Non-Performing Assets o
(i) (a) Related parties = E
(b) Other than related parties 240.90 277.65

Assets acquired in satisfaction

(i) | of debt
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59, Disclosure of Restructured Accounts

s, Type of Restruciuring Under COR Mechanism Under SME Debt Others
Wo. Asset Classilication Dstails :\ ? l;: El Total .: ? E: E Total ;\ B E I'J Total
No. of borrowers HEEEE =l -d-1-1- -] . 1635 (. |- 1,635
1 [Restructured accounts as on 1 April 2021 Amount outstanding B =l ]l-1-1- . | o 1442 (. | - 14.42
Provision thereon -1 ]- =l ] -]-]- - |- 950/ - |- 250
No. of bormawers mEEEE <l -1-1-1]- - - 83]- 1. §3
2 |Fresh restructuring during the year Amount autstanding BN - | -] -].7- | - eM]- |- 0.71
Provision thereon -l -] -1- sl -y-1-1- -] - 0461 - |- 0.45 |
No. of borrowers L I B IS =l -]-01-1- = 4§ - 275 - | - 275
3 |Upgradations to restructured standard category Amount outsianding « |- -1- -7 -1 - |- -l .
Provision thereon - . - - -l -] -] - . = | . < | |- -
Restructured standard advances which cease to attract Eolollicoves - B e St B R .- .
4 higher provisioning and / or additicnal risk weight at the end |Amount outstanding N T sl -].01-1. o NE N I .
of the FY and hence need not be shown as restructured
standard acvances at the beginning of the next FY Provision thereon PO P I FO I R PO -] . [ I 5
No. of borrowers sy -1-1- sl el -] - L a2l |- B2
3 |Bowngradations of restructured accounts during the FY Amourit outstanding -1 -1- =l -t -f-1- I 850 |- 6.50
Provision therean E I I = 1-1-1-1- - 42t]- . 4.21
No. of bomowers -l -1 -] - =l -] 01> N E 8]-1]- 8
6 [Wnie-offs of restructured accounts during the FY Amount outstanding -] ] -] < l-1-1-1- -1 - 008|- |- .09
{Provision thereon = -] -1- e L I 006| - |- 0.06
No. of borrowers =] -] -] - sl -[-1-1- - | - N ERE .
7 |Adjustments as on 3tst Mar22 for payment/provision® Amount receved =l -t-1]- =1 -1-1-1- = | - sM|- ]- 5.3
Provision adjustments sl -0~ -3 -1-1- - |- 305(- - 3.05 |
No. of borrowers o e I I ]l el ]-1T- = ] . §03 |- |- §03
g it;s:t;u?c)mred Accounts as on 31st March 2022 (S No 1+2-3- Amaunt outstanding P P P T N P — XA R 336
Prowision therean - )1 -1- sl -T-q-1- - | - 2041 - |- 254

* The Onginal format does not contain these pasticutars details
# A: Standard assets B: Sub-standard assets C: Doubtful assets D: Loss assets

Mote - Restructured assels are now classified as slage J assets and accordingly provision on the same is created as per ECL method prescrbed under IND AS 109
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$SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

60. Additional Disclosures

60.1. Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021 |
i) CRAR (%) 23.83% 24.75%
iy CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 21.03% 20.86%
i) CRAR - Tier It Capital (%) 2.80% 3.89%
v} A_mount of. su.bordmaled debt raised as 1.150 1.250

Tier-l capital

v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual ) .

Debt Instruments

"Qualifying amount as Tier Il Capital as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 490 crore (March 31, 2021 Rs.
650 crore). Fresh subordinated debt raised as Tier |l during Financial Year 2021-22 is NIL
{March 31, 2021 Rs NIL crore).

60.2. Investments

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021

1 Value of Investments
(i) Gross Value of Investments

(a) InIndia 1,287.19 957.56
(b) Outside India - -
(i) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In India - -
{b) Outside India - -
(iii} Net Value of Investments
(3) InIndia 1,297.18 957.56
{b} Outside India - -

2 Movement of Provisions held towards
(i} Opening balance - -
(i) Add: Provisions madde during the year S S
(iii) Less: Write-off / write-back of excess - S
{iv) Closing balance - -

60.3. Derivatives

Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

For the year ended| For the year ended
S- No. — March 31, 2ozzl March 31, 2021
() |The notionai principal of swap agreements Nil Nil
(i} |Losses which would be incurred if
counierparties failed to fulfill their Nil Nil
obligations under the agreements
(iy Collateral required by the NBFC upon Nil Nil
entering into swaps
(iv) |Concentration of credit risk arising from . "
Nil Nil
the swaps
(v} _|The fair value of the swap book Nil Nil
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

60.4. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

For the year ended| For the year ended

— Particulars March 31,2022)  March 31, 2021

() [Notional principal amount of exchange

traded IR derivatives undertaken during the Nil Nil
year

(ii} . .
Notional principal amount of exchange Nil Nil

traded IR derivatives outstanding

(i)} |Notional principal amount of exchange

traded IR derivatives outstanding and not Nil Nil
“highly effective”

(V) [Mark-to-market value of exchange traded
IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly Nit Nil
effective”

60.5. Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosure

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
5. No. Particutars Currency | Interest Rate Currency Intorest
Derivatives Derivativeg Derlvatives Rats |
{i}  |Derivatives {Notional Principal Armount)

Hedged Assels Nil Nill 25.73 Nil

{USD 0.35)

Hedged Liabilities- Loan Nil Hil] il

Hedged Liabiliies- interests Nill Nill Nill

Marked to Market Posilions

a} Assel {+} N N 010
b) Liability {-) Nil Nil Nil
Cradit Exposure Nl Nil Nil
Unhedged Exposures 158.08 Nif 110,11
Refer note 38.1.1 to the financial statements for details
e
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$BI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stateci)

60.6,

60.7.

Disclosures relating to Securitisation

S. No.

Particulars

3

2

No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for
securitisation transactions
Total amount of securitised assets as per
books of the SPVs sponsored
Total amount of exposures retained by the
NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date
of balance sheet
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
First loss
Others
b) On-balance sheet exposures
First loss
Others
Armount of exposures to securitisalion
transactions other than MRR
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) Exposure to own securitizations
First loss
Others
i} Exposure to third party
securitisations
First loss
Others
b) On-balance sheel exposures
i) Exposure to own securitisations
First loss
Others
ii) Exposure to third party
securitisations
First loss
Others

For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil NH
Nil Nil
Nif Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nif Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Ni! Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil
Nil Nil

Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for

Asset Reconstruction

For the year ended| For the year ended|
S. No. Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021]
{i} |No. of accounts 825 31671
(i} |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of
accounts sold to SC / RC Rs 2.23 Crores Rs 79.88 Crores
(i) |Aggregate consideration Rs 0.52 Crores Rs 18.43 Crores
(V) |Additional consideration realized in respect
. . NIL NIL
of accounts transferred in earlier years
W Aggregate gain / (loss) over net book value (Rs 1.71 Crores)| (Rs 61.45 Crores)
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

60.8. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs

For the year ended| For the year ended
S. No. LT March 31,2022|  March 31, 2021
(i) [No. of accounts Nil Nil
(i) |Aggregate value (net of provisions) of . .
Nil Nil
accounts sold
{ii) |Aggregate consideration Nil Nil
(iv) [Additional consideration realized in respect ) .
. . Nil Nil
of accounts transferred in earlier years
(V) |Aggregate gain / loss over net book value Nil Nil

60.9. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold from/to other NBFC

For the year ended[ For the year ended|
Particulars March 31,2022|  March 31, 2021
(a) No. of accounts purchased during the Nil Nil
1 vear
(b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
(@) Of !hese. number of accounts restructured Nil Nil
2 during the year
(b) Aggregate oulistanding Nil Nil
-
.-'"--.-.

<
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SBI Cards and Paymaent Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements

{Figure In Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)
60.10. Asset Liability Management

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2022

e AT T e el el P Bl s
|—uptoSmonths | upiofysar | uptolyssrs | upto & yesr
377862 276807 Y8247 IYFid ] 3004 20 a7ig3s 3276 31 354747 - 24090 3018725
- - B 23031 S06 40230 195 68 217 €3 180 24 ea| 139710
160200 T.050 00 2801 07 2204 54 341540 1880 50 198350 5 055 00 84995 35000  zzo8zas
T84z
. - 41 o -
w25
e 6478 .

Maturity pattem of certain items of assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021

Over t month OverZmonths | Over Smonths | Over § months | OverTyear& | CverJysars &

Ry Upta 7 days Boays 15-30131 days upte 2 manths upto 3 menths upto 8 months Upio 1 year uplo J yaary uplo $ years i aats ULl
2760 14 177110 275084 344015 2268341 382337 780028 I560 18 : 77765 73450 14
- = - 28153 1863 20188 8111 A5 54 22151 1120 $57 58
1314368 18303% 205671 3524 37 2,124 25 1278 78 126088 3585 00 750 00 35000 17 094 78
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- E - 39 . 8913 . =
©2n
- 1353 4920
100




5Bl Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

60.11. Exposure to Real Estate

| Category As at March 31, 20221 As at March 31, 2021
a) |Direct Exposure

(i) Residential Mortgages

Lending fully secured by mongages on residential property thal is
or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Nl il

—

(i} Commercial Real Estate

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office
buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, muiti-
family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial premises,
industrial or warghouse space, holels, land acquisition. Nil Nil
developmenl and consiruction, elc.). Exposure would also include
non-fund based limits,

{ill} Investments in Morigage Backed Securities (MBS) and other

a. Residential Nil Nil
b, Commercial real Eslale Nil Nil

60.12. Exposure to Capital Market

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2021

Direct invesiment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible
debentures and unils of equity-criented mutual funds the corpus of Nil Nil
which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

Advances against shares / bonds / debeniures or other securities or on
i) clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPQs / Nt Nil

ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debenlures, and units of equity-
orented mutual funds;

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or
{ifijjconvertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are Nil Nil
laken as primary security;

Advancas for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
(ivj{units of equity orlented mutual funds i & where the primary security Nl Nil
other lhan shares / convertible bonds ¢ convertible debentures / units of
equily oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

v Secured and ynsecured advances lo stockbrokers and guarantees Nil Nil
) issued on behaifl of stockbrokers and market makers,

Loans sanclioned to corporales against the securily of shares / bonds /
vi debentures or other secunties or on clean basis for meeting promoter's Nil Nil
i} contribution lo the equily of new companies in anticipation of raising

resources,;

(vii)Bridge loans to companias against expecled equily flows / issues; Nit Nil
(i Al ex?osums: o Veniura Lapial Funds (Doin regisierea ang Nil Nit
[Total Exposure to Capital Market Nil Nil

60.13. Details of financing of parent company products

The Company has not financed any of the products of its parent company during the financial year
2021-22.

60.14. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

The Company has not exceeded the prudential exposure limits during the year ended March 31,
2022.
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SBIl Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
{Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

60.15. Miscellaneous

60.15.1. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The Company has also obtained registration from the following Regulators.
[Registration Authority IRegistration No.
Certificate of Incorporatoin under Companies Act 2013 L65999DL 1998PLC053849
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India |caoo7s
INBFC Registeration |14 01328

60.15.2. Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

No penallies have been imposed by any regulators during financial year 2021-22.
60.15.3. Related Party Transactions

For related party transaction refer note no.41
60.15.4. Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

The short-term debt rating of the Company is A1+ by CRISIL and ICRA. Long-term debt rating is AAA
/ Stable by CRISIL and ICRA. There is no change in the rating during financial year 2024-22.

60.15.5. Revenue Recognition

There is no circumstance in which revenue recognition has been postponed pending the resclution of
significant uncertainties.

60.15.6. Remuneration to Directors

During the year the Company has paid Rs 1.17 Crores towards Directors fees, allowances and
expenses

Refer note 33

60.15.7. Net Profit or loss for the period, prior period items and change in accounting policies
There has been no change in the Significant Accounting policies followed during the financial year

2021-22 in comparison to the financial Year 2020-21. Further, there are no adjustment of prior period
items during the financial year 2021-22.
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61. Additiona! Disclosures
61.1. Provisions and Contingencies
: o A ¢! o g
Break up of *Provisions and Contingencies' shown under Asat March 31,2022 | As at March 31 2021
the head Expendituce in Profit and Loss Account
Provision 1owards stage 3 assets * 452 52 976 63
Proviston for stage | and stage 2 assels * 641 60 678 06
Provision for Long Service Awards 610 883
Provision for reward points redemption 410 14 34200
Provision for Gratuity . R
Provision for Compensalted absences 15 50 16 94
Provision on Trade Receivable O 034
Provision on Financial assets 2.9 [ 91
Provision on Non Financial assets 542 11374
Provision for Bonus & Incentive Payable 43 65 40 97
* Includes management overlay
61.2. Draw Down from reserves
There is no draw down from the reserves during the financial year ended March 31, 2022
61.3. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs #
Concentration of Advances
Particulars As ot March 31, 2022 | As ot March 31, 2021
Total Advances 1o Iwenly largest bomowers* 50 55 495
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest barroawers to Total Advances o 169 0 e
of the NBFC z Eh
61.4. Concentration of Exposures
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers customers** 26463 21708
Percentage of Exposures to twenly largest bormowers/cusiomers 1o Tetal
'Exposun:s of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 0.21% il 16%
**In case of Corporate Cards, the exposure includes all the credit cards exposure to that Corporate in
total. The exposure here denotes the total credit card limit against the top twenty borrowers
61.5. Concentration of NPAs #
Particutars As ot March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Total Exposure 1o top four NPA accounts® 070 073

"All four NPA accounts has been blocked for transactions
# refers to Stage 3 asset
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SBI Cards and Payment Services Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(Figure in Rupees Crores, unless otherwise stated)

61.6.

61.7.

Sector wise NPAs #

Yo of N"As (o Total
S1 No. Sectuor Aalvances in that As at Murch 30, 2022 | As at Murch 31, 2021
sector
I |Agreculiere & allied activities Ut} -
2 |MSME 0.00% - -
3 | Corporate borrowers - Credit Cards* 0.00% 000
4 Services 0 (1% -
5 | Unsecured personal loans 0 00%] - -
6 | Aute loans 0020 - -
7 Other personal loans - Credit Cards 2220, 693 42 1.25428

*In case of Corporate Cards, the NPA includes all the credit cards exposure to that corporate in total. %

of NPA is for FY 2021-22.
Movement of NPAs #
[ Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | Asat March 31. 2021 |
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 078%| 115%
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
{3} Opening balance 123428 484 39
{b) Additions during the year * 125643 EN Rl
(¢) Reductions duting the year (2811 26) {2,139 34)
{d} Derecognised during the vear 603) (23281)
{¢) Closing balance 69342 125428
(ii) Movement of NI'As {Net)
{a} Opening balance 17763 138 86
b Additions during the vear 91130 91698
{c} Reductions dunng the vear {948 05} (82819)
() Closing balance 23090 27763
{iii} Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard nssets)
{a)  Opening balance 97663 32553
(b) Provisions made during the vear 1LM512 1N5%
(e} Write-ofl / wnite-back of excess (1,864 92) (11120
{d)  Derecogmsed during the vear {430 (15291
{¢) Closing balance 43352 976 63

* Addition dureng the year s net of repayment

# refers o Stage 3 asset
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61.8.

61.9.

61.10.

61.11.

Disclosure in terms of RBI Circular (RBI/2019-20/170} No:
DOR(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020.

Asdat qﬂmn Carrying! Loss Allowances Difference
Asaet Clasaification as per RBINorms | Classification | A tas per| (P a8 u': Carrying J quired as per IRACP norms | between Ind AS
as perlnd AS Ind AS required under 109 provitlons
U] [t} [E] ) (SR(IH4) {61} (82)" | {819 (61p(8.2) | (Tietays)
Parforming Assets
Stage 1 2793149 45582 ITATE ST
Stoge 2 2858 47 185691 247078 el PGS e e
30.537.95 84160 29.946.18 12235 | M0 207.20 434.32
Non-Performing Assets {NPA}
Substandard Stage 3 £93 28 45248 24{ 90 5273 5273 18575
Doutrtful- up 1o | yaa Stage 3
1:3 yoars Stage 3
[More than 1 ysars Stage 3
|Subtotal of dobtful
Loss Staged 004 004 - 004 Dos ]
Subtotal of NPA 89342 452.82 240.%0 .17 [T%i] 19975
Other dems such a5 guarantess, loan Stage 1
etc. which ass in the scope of]
Ind AS 109 but not covered under cyrcenl ftage 2
Income Recognaion, Assel Clasuficsion
jand Provisioning (IRACF) norms Stage J
Subtetal B 5 & N
Stage 1 793149 485,92 2747558
5 : .. .32
= Stage? 208647 nses|  24mem 12235 B% . e
Stage 3 19242 45252 24030 g2t - 5217 33878
Total 11.181.37 JITRF] 30,187 .28 17517 M9 260.08 834.07

* Substandard assets provision as per JRACP norms is based on principal balance. Income which would
have been derecognized in IRACP on substandard assets is Rs. 165.70 Crores.

RBI

-k

Represents  additional provision created in line Circular, RBI/2019-20/220

DOR.No.BP.BC .63/21.04.048/2020-21 dated April 17,2020,

Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries ahroad)
There is no overseas asset as at March 31, 2022.

Ofi-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored
There is no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

Disclosures pursuant to RBI Notification — RBI/2020-21/16 DOR.No.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21
dated August 06, 2020, and RBI/2021-22/31/DOR.STR.REC. 11/21.04.048/2021-22 dated May 05
2021.

Exposure to accounts Exposure to accounts
classifled as Standard classified as Standard
consequent to Of {A), aggregate debt that Of {A) amount paid by the comequent 10

Type of borrower Implementation of slipped into NPA during Gl L:lﬂ:':::: :‘:::::’OH borrowers during the implementation of
resolution plan - Position the hall-year half year resalution plan = Pasition
as at the end of the 2% 2t the end of this half-

previous half-year [A) 0 year

Personal Loans * 84372 182.71 258 52 38524 282 19

Corporaie persons - - - - 1

Of which MSMES 5

Others - = - - -

Total B43.72 182.71 268,52 386.24 282.19

* Represent Credit Card advances for RBI RE 1.0 and RBI RE 2.0
# Status as of September 30, 2021 -7

-
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61.12. .Disclosures of Customers Complaints

Gross Inflows Peeviously reperted numbers
e Farticulars \patMamh 312022 | AvatMaech J1, 2020 ¢ As at March 31,2020
1) |No. of cases perding at the besannieyg of the year 12150 535 ICT]
1 |No of cases received dunng the year 733 30 EIA S 1147
(¢) {No. of cases redressed dunng the vear 736,711 204308 15 290
{d) {No of Cascs pending at the end of the vear 983 12180 il

* The number of complaints reported by the Company in the Annual Report for FY2020-2021 comprised
of Net Internal Complaints and Gross Banking Ombudsman Complaints. The organization has moved
towards reporling of Gross Inflow and Net complaints, from above mentioned infernal and external
channels, derived as per defined processes. Numbers reported in the annual report for FY 2020-21 are
not comparable with FY2021-22 numbers. Further numbers for FY2020-21 have been revised as per

the revised methodology.
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